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HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue was HK$2,646.5 million (2020: HK$3,030.2
million), decreased by 12.7%, as the COVID-19 pandemic
adversely affected the economic activities and restaurant
patronage throughout the year.

FEEAIEIN524% E B 15368 T(ZE_F
& BK6,00087T)  TERANEENEKERN
RI - BERK AL R EBBTRE AR BR
HEOZTEHY -

Profit for the year increased by 152.4% to HK$153.6 million
(2020: HK$60.9 million), mainly attributable to improved
productivity and efficiency, proactive cost management as
well as various subsidies from the Hong Kong Government
in respect to the pandemic situation during the year.
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The Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) subsidies of
HK$183.2 million representing approximately 21.4% of the
Group's staff costs in Hong Kong, were fully used for
salaries and wages.
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The Group maintained a healthy financial position with
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents of HK$622.1
million as at 31 March 2021.
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The Group had no bank borrowings and nil gearing ratio as
at 31 March 2021.
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Basic earnings per share were HK118.59 cents (2020:
HK47.03 cents), increased by 152.2%.

EED IR S EMR60.078 - 2F 4 H0IKK
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Final dividend of HK60.0 cents per share was proposed,
representing a total dividend per share for the year of
HK90.0 cents and a payout ratio of approximately 76%.
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Interim results announcement
27 November 2020
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Paid date of the interim dividend
31 December 2020
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Annual results announcement
29 June 2021
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Closure of Register of Members

— Annual general meeting
3 September 2021 to 9 September 2021
(both days inclusive)

— Proposed final dividend
16 September 2021 to 20 September 2021
(both days inclusive)

BREEFRE Annual general meeting
—E-—FhANA 9 September 2021
KRR SR B HA Payable date of the final dividend

—E - —FtALBRKZH

On or before 7 October 2021
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
decreased by 12.7% year-on-year to HK$2,646.5 million (2020:
HK$3,030.2 million). Gross profit margin increased to 12.4% (2020:
9.2%), mainly due to reduction of revenue and Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) from HKSAR Government. Profit
attributable to equity shareholders increased by 152.4% to
HK$153.6 million (2020: HK$60.9 million). Basic earnings per
share amounted to HK118.59 cents (2020: HK47.03 cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK60.0 cents
(2020: HK50.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March
2021. Together with the interim dividend of HK30.0 cents (2020:
HK23.0 cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounts to HK90.0 cents (2020:
HK73.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution of
approximately 76% of the Group's profit for the year. The
proposed final dividend will be paid on or before Thursday, 7
October 2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on
Monday, 20 September 2021.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial year 2020/2021 was largely the story of COVID-19.
For businesses in the restaurant industry, the pandemic has been
particularly challenging due to the measures undertaken by the
Government to control its spread. For lengthy periods during the
year, mandatory social distancing, significantly reduced seating
capacity, and periods of restricted opening hours have affected all
restaurants in Hong Kong. Combined with increased public
caution about mingling, these measures led to periods of
significant reduction in restaurant patronage throughout the year.
Fortunately, this was offset to an extent by a marked increase in
takeaway dining at home.

KPRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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From the outset, health, hygiene and safety for staff and
customers have been a number one priority for Fairwood. We
took steps to reassure everyone associated with Fairwood that
they were working, or dining, in the safest possible environment.
In addition to government-mandated measures, we implemented
the full range of best-practice hygiene measures across our
restaurants. We also went the extra mile, for example by
introducing Raze nano-photocatalyst self-sanitising spray on
surfaces in all our stores. These initiatives have enhanced customer
confidence about dining in Fairwood restaurants and put our staff,
especially on the customer-facing side, at their ease.

In response to changes in dining habits, we moved physical to
expand and enhance our “Click and Collect” online ordering
system, designed to further minimise contact during takeaway
pick-ups. The system was boosted by a highly effective, award-
winning marketing campaign which received the “Best use of
Programmatic (Gold)” award at the MARKies Awards 2021 by
Marketing Magazine. Uptake of the “Click and Collect” system
was rapid and has continued to grow over the months since its
launch. The sales made via “Click and Collect” represented a
significant percentage of the Group's total business.

KPRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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We also responded to the pandemic by enhancing our takeaway
menu to cater for the increased number and wider range of diners
ordering takeaway meals. One much-welcomed initiative was the
introduction of clay pot rice dishes, which were delivered in
individual clay pots for flavour and authenticity (subject to a
nominal refundable surcharge). A festive and affordable poon choi
(23%) dish was also added to the takeaway menu in December,
when evening dining was not permitted, so customers could still
enjoy this holiday highlight at home. Another highlight was a new
Golden Cheesy Baked Rice series of dishes, launched in January
2021, which proved an immediately popular takeaway option.

In periods when restaurants were required by the government to
close at 6:00 p.m., we moved our official Fairwood dinner menu
availability one hour earlier, to 5:00 p.m. Many diners who were
unable to dine at home welcomed this opportunity to enjoy their
evening meal earlier in our comfortable and hygienic restaurants.
We also began offering some convenient and highly economical
two-person meal packages, enabling couples to better co-ordinate
their dining times. A series of focus groups studies that we
undertook also showed that Hong Kong people were missing the
foreign food they would normally have enjoyed on holiday; in
response, in March 2021 we launched a new series of Vietnamese-
themed dishes, soon to be followed by other exotic menu items.

We pride ourselves on our close communication with staff, and
the excellent staff relationships that exist across our organisation.
Face-to-face communication became more difficult in the
pandemic, so we increased our use of digital channels for staff
communication and training. We expanded our use of short
training videos for Customer Service training, which can be
produced quickly and distributed across the organisation
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efficiently, and which are popular among staff because they
deliver their practical, consistent messages in a fun way. These
training methods allowed us to reinforce our commitment to
delivering high quality service at all times, even in the face of
government measures which changed the way staff had to
operate. The Group was honoured this year to be awarded the
Outstanding Award for Employers by the Employees Retraining
Board (ERB), an award which recognises our work in providing job
opportunities to ERB trainees, as well as on-the-job training and
career development opportunities to newly recruited staff.

Alongside all these initiatives, the Group took measures to tighten
its belt wherever possible. One way we enhanced our cost
management was by better staff shift arrangements across the
year through flexible scheduling. We also negotiated both with
restaurant landlords for rental concessions or reductions in the
period, and with our food and non-food vendors and contractors
for better terms. Cumulatively, these efforts paid off and helped
Fairwood maintain a relatively stable bottom line. Enhanced
efficiencies were also explored. For example, we were able to
streamline our storage arrangements both at our central food
processing plant and with our key logistics provider, freeing up
more storage space and reducing costs due to more flexible
storage options.

2H+245!

RO B




14

FERE
Chairman’s Statement

58

mEfTE - HEEMSEXIRIEHNNETE 2
FEEHETENI5%  ER HERNE
MR IR e - KPRVER B EMNREEIEAH
SNEHE - WHE T & [ Click and Collect ] -
NEHEAEREEEMNTYR  MEITNEE
22 B A R B 25 & AN FE P RO B P R PR MR TR
Ao Britb AN RIEES T RFZBEME
HYMRMEFBENEE -

HRFEERNET —AEREABRTIRIS
FRENRER  AEREHTEMNFTERRE
JEAR - EERBIEETBE THFRE IR
‘EFME - AR EERINEEZBANE
BEM B —HMARNRBENLRAD
At - HAIFEREBE RN ZHE — T RAZ M
JRER -

SENERTERMASHEIEZRARBRIBEMEL
HEMYE - HMEHEEEBRTNPIRERE
REETREHR-—ER2FLENRERE - F
A RfEERRERBELIREEAERE
M WAL TR ERER - EAEMURIF
HFERRE  BERMFEEELZHOERT

Hong Kong

As aforementioned, the Hong Kong market was hard hit by the
pandemic with same-store sales down by approximately 15% for
the year. In response to the mandatory government measures
imposed throughout the year, our Fairwood fast-food restaurants
in Hong Kong expanded their takeaway sales and introduced the
new “Click and Collect” platform to counteract the drop in dine-
in sales. Costs were also reduced by flexible staff scheduling and
negotiations with landlords and suppliers. Nevertheless, Fairwood
has gratefully received various Government subsidies which have
helped us maintain a stable position.

Our specialty restaurants were harder hit than our fast-food
outlets by COVID-19, since part of the appeal of these restaurants
is the in-store experience they offer to our customers. Once the
dining scene stabilised in the second half of the year, however,
performances recovered well, showing that these restaurants
enjoy a strong and loyal customer base. Our Taiwan Bowl
restaurants were especially resilient, and we expect to further
expand this brand when circumstances permit.

Our social responsibility activities this year have necessarily been
focused on responding to the pandemic. We have done our best
to support Government anti-pandemic measures and to provide
Hong Kong people with a safe, hygienic environment to dine in.
We continued to distribute our ‘Care for Senior Cards’ to the
elderly over the year, adding in new dining benefits in the process.
Other community events have been placed temporarily on hold;
we look forward to resuming them as soon as it is safe to do so.
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Mainland China

Results from Fairwood’s Mainland operations followed a similar
pattern to that of Hong Kong, with same-store sales down by
approximately 27% in local currency. With firm confidence in the
potential of our Mainland China operations, we opened four new
stores in the year, while also completing the localisation of the
entire Mainland China management and operational team. By
doing this, we have enhanced the ‘on the ground’ local expertise
that is so valuable when making decisions about new store
locations and engaging in rental negotiations. This localisation
move represents greater empowerment for Mainland stores and a
higher level of trust in the ability of our Mainland managers to
respond to local market conditions and customer preferences, and
brings benefits for Fairwood in expanding further in Mainland
China. We expect to see a further rebound in sales in the year
ahead, providing us with a solid foundation for future growth.

NETWORK

During the year under review, the Group opened nine new stores,
five in Hong Kong and four in Mainland China. As of 31 March
2021, the Group had a total of 156 stores in Hong Kong,
including 145 Fairwood fast food restaurants and 11 specialty
restaurants, namely three ASAP, three Taiwan Bowl, four The Leaf
Kitchen, and one Kenting Tea House. In Mainland China, the
Group operates 16 stores.
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PROSPECTS

As COVID-19 restrictions are gradually eased by the Government,
Fairwood is experiencing a marked pick-up in sales as customers
return to their preferred restaurant dining habits. We are
optimistic that, assuming the pandemic is kept under control, the
Group's performance will again reflect its underlying strengths
and its strong historic reputation in Hong Kong, and we will
continue to grow on the Mainland.

As we readjust to the new normal, we remain totally committed
to Fairwood'’s core values — namely, providing heartfelt service
for our customers while delivering high quality food at affordable
prices. The cost controls that we have initiated in the past year will
continue, as part of our commitment to prudent financial
management. We will also continue our heightened emphasis on
health and hygiene, to keep customers reassured of the safety of
dining at Fairwood. Plans are in place to continue expanding our
menu options to increase our appeal across an even wider range
of age groups, supplemented by a greater use of technology for
menu selection, ordering and delivery processes.

After year-end, in April 2021, the Group completed the acquisition
of a bakery production line, including machineries, inventories and
staff. This acquisition will give us full control over the production
of bakery items for our restaurants. Among the benefits it will
bring, we will be able to expand the range of bakery products we
offer while at the same time reducing the costs associated with
these products.
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Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITERE

Executive Chairman

BE ZEZ—FAZTHA
Hong Kong, 29 June 2021

APPRECIATION

Given the severe challenges we have faced, | am deeply grateful
for the Fairwood spirit on display throughout the year. Everyone
involved with Fairwood has rallied round and played their parts to
keep us moving forward. | would especially like to thank our
devoted staff members, who have gone over and above their
calling to keep our restaurants operating smoothly, and to
reassure and put our customers at ease in a warm professional
manner. Not many organisations of our size can boast such a close
"family’ atmosphere within its workforce. | must also thank the
people of Hong Kong, for whom Fairwood has long been a much-
loved household name. Despite the difficulties associated with
dining out over the past year, our customers have come back to
us again and again, showing their appreciation for everything that
Fairwood stands for.

The signs are promising that society has turned a corner in dealing
with the pandemic. Fairwood has battled through a tough period,
staying strong and staying committed to serving our community
under the most difficult of circumstances. | believe that will not be
forgotten once things restabilise, and that the experience will
indeed make us stronger as a company and as an integral part of
society.

APRSEEBEERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2021, total assets of the Group were HK$2,448.0
million (2020: HK$2,708.9 million). The Group’s net current
liabilities were HK$9.6 million (2020: HK$247.0 million),
represented by total current assets of HK$802.3 million (2020:
HK$668.6 million) against total current liabilities of HK$811.9
million (2020: HK$915.6 million). Current ratio, being the
proportion of total current assets against total current liabilities,
was 1.0 (2020: 0.7). Total equity was HK$777.8 million (2020:
HK$720.8 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2021, the
Group had bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$622.1 million (2020: HK$511.0 million),
representing an increase of 21.7%. Most bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group had no bank loan and
the gearing ratio was nil, which was calculated based on the total
bank loan over the total equity. The unutilised banking facilities
were HK$269.7 million (2020: HK$247.4 million).

DEPRECIATION

The Group's depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
decreased by HK$3.0 million from HK$103.9 million to HK$100.9
million mainly due to fewer renovation works during the year.

The depreciation charges of right-of-use assets, which were
amortised the right-of-use assets in a straight-line basis over the
lease term in accordance to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 16, Leases (“HKFRS 16"), increased by HK$13.0 million
from HK$430.2 million to HK$443.2 million. The increase was
primarily due to last year’s renewal of the short-term leases.

FINANCE COSTS

During the reporting period, the Group recorded the finance costs
of HK$36.8 million (2020: HK$38.0 million). The finance costs
represented the interest expenses accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liabilities.
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PROFITABILITY

Return on average equity was 20.5% (2020: 8.1%), being profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, capital expenditure (excluding right-of-use assets)
was approximately HK$93.5 million (2020: HK$143.6 million). The
decrease was mainly due to fewer renovation works for new
shops and existing shops compared to last year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group's financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at banks and other financial assets that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to United States dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 March 2021, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$1.0 million (2020: HK$1.1 million) and no
bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or banking
facilities.

COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2021
were HK$7.9 million (2020: HK$19.5 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2021, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries.
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As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
these guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn down by all
the subsidiaries that are covered by these guarantees, being
HK$89.2 million (2020: HK$101.5 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and there is no transaction price.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

At 31 March 2021, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 5,600 (2020: 5,800). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$734.3 million (2020: HK$1,019.9 million).
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 69, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course on
food and beverage management at New York University. After
completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo returned to
Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company. Mr
Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. Mr Lo is the father of Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis,
the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited
which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, aged 38, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Francis Lo attended the
School of Computer Science at Carnegie Mellon University. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr Francis Lo held a senior management
position at an overseas restaurant and had over four years of
experience in the food and beverage industry including
management of operations, product development and business
strategy formulation. Mr Francis Lo joined the Company as
Management Trainee in August 2013. He was promoted to
Executive Manager in February 2015 and further to be Specialty
Restaurant General Manager in April 2018. Since 1 January 2019,
he has been appointed as Executive Director of the Company and
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 April
2020. Mr Francis Lo is the son of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, the
Executive Chairman of the Company.
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Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 54, is the Executive Director and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Mak holds a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Economics, a Master of Science Degree in
Finance and a Master Degree in Business Administration. She is an
Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as “the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries”) and the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as “The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators”) as well as a Fellow Member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms Mak has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. Prior to joining
the Company, she had held senior management positions in
several companies the securities of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Ms Mak
joined the Company in 2004 and was appointed Executive
Director, Company Secretary and Authorized Representative of
the Company on 1 January 2010.

Ms Peggy Lee, aged 50, is the Executive Director of the
Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Lee obtained her MBA and Bachelor Degree in
Marketing in the U.S.A.. She has over 20 years of experience in
brand building and management, product development, retail and
sales management across different industries. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms Lee had held senior management positions with a
number of well-known companies. Ms Lee joined the Company in
February 2011 and was appointed Executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ng Chi Keung, aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, Members of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Ng holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration. He is an Associate Member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants as well as a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr Ng has over 35 years' experience in finance and
management. Prior to joining the Group, he held senior
management positions with a number of well-known local and
overseas multinational companies. Mr Ng joined the Company in
1994 and was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in
November 1995. On his retirement on 1 January 2010, he was re-
designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company and
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee while remaining
as a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company at
the same time. Mr Ng was later re-designated as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 6 June 2017. Mr Ng is
an Independent Non-executive Director of Soundwill Holdings
Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 73, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He
is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
Member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr Chan
graduated from The University of Hong Kong, the University of
Strathclyde and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of
Business Administration Degree and a Master of Education
Degree. He is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resource Management and The Hong Kong Professional
Counselling Association. Mr Chan has over 40 years' experience in
human resources development in public, commercial and
educational sectors and is actively engaged in the professional
development of higher education student affairs practitioners and
high school careers teachers in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 68, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2000. He is also the Members of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr Lau holds a
Doctorate Degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, a MBA Degree from the University of
Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified
Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over 12 years of
management and accounting experience in the private and public
sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. He is
an Adjunct Professor of the College of Business at City University
of Hong Kong as well as an external member of the School of
Business Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Baptist University. He
was previously the Chairman of the Advisory Committee on
management and marketing at The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Dr Lau is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of
Giordano International Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo, aged 56, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in November
2008. He is also a Member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr Tsoi graduated from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada with an Honours Degree in Business
Administration in 1986.
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Mr Peter Wan Kam To, aged 68, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2009. He is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Wan is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He was a
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong & China firm with
extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. Mr Wan is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely A-Living Smart City Services Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
“A-Living Services Co., Ltd.”), China Resources Land Limited,
Haitong International Securities Group Limited, KFM Kingdom
Holdings Limited and Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited while
holding the position of Independent Director of China World
Trade Centre Co., Ltd. which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr Wan is the Treasurer and Council Member of the
Open University of Hong Kong. He is also the Non-executive
Director of the Financial Reporting Council. Mr Wan was an
Independent Non-executive Director of Harbin Bank Co., Ltd. until
8 October 2019, Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited until
28 June 2019, Kerry Logistics Network Limited until 31 May 2019
and Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. until 27 June
2019 which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

KPRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

25



26

ESEHRE

Report of the Directors

AREEEERAA(ARADEFE([E
EFRD2ANERARAREME QR (5HE
[(REEDHE-_T-_—F=ZA=1+—HILF
ERFRMEEZSFAMTBEHRREE -

EEERME
RAREBREFMAL  FTMPFEER
B2 Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM10, Bermuda * 1 & & & 2£ 1 2h
AlEREEItANZEE T N \REEMEFRL
o

FERGRRBOBR
ARBNEBEEBRZREZER - AEETEL
BREEEBRMERE - EXENBRFN
ETEEBMEMFBHINNAFRE 169 K5
1708 »

BEB(ARMEBDHRS 2Bk - BEAEKA
B — TR o - B BEAEEATEEE
NEBRBM T EETAEZEARRTEEEE -
HREHINAFEREITE 16BN LB EE]
RIBEIRREEERMEES3EESTBEL
BB R EE -

AEERATRFENEBRHMELUED
AT 8 51 70 B 75 R B FE 3(b)

BE HERELIERE

EREEN—HF  AREBOHRERE
T BTHBZERLEIHRNEREAY
2MEE - FHAYET  RREERER R
BMEENFAERBRIRE e MERR
SRR - ZREGER LSRR BRI R
ERMARGMARDR (B4 -

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in submitting its annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F,
TRP Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
169 and 170 of the annual report.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Business Review"” and “Prospects”
set out on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report while the risk
management policy is on pages 53 to 57 of the Corporate
Governance Report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 3(b) to the financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING

As part of the community, the Group strives to support the
environmental protection works, to strictly comply with the
relevant rules and regulations and to consider the material aspects
of our stakeholders. The comprehensive information related to our
operating principles on our employees, food quality and safety,
environment and customers will be further discussed in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which will be
published in the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in due
course.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Board was not aware of any non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and the respective jurisdiction of the place of incorporation of the
Company and subsidiaries that have significant impact on the
Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of
revenue and purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30% (2020: less than
30%) of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK30.0 cents (2020: HK23.0 cents) per
share was paid on 31 December 2020. The Board now
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK60.0 cents (2020:
HK50.0 cents) per share in respect of the year ended 31 March
2021.

More information about the Company’s dividend policy is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no charitable donation has
been made by the Group (2020: HK$20,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 23 to the
financial statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$356,068,000 (2020: HK$459,419,000). After the end of the
reporting period, the Directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
proposed a final dividend of HK60.0 cents (2020: HK50.0 cents)
per share amounting to HK$77,720,000 (2020: HK$64,767,000).
The dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Peggy Lee

Non-executive Director
Chan Chee Shing (resigned on 1 October 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Chi Keung
Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo
Peter Wan Kam To

In accordance with Bye-laws 109(A) and 189(viii) of the Company,
Ms Peggy Lee, Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo will not offer himself for re-election
whereas Ms Peggy Lee and Mr Peter Wan Kam To, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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{1/

Personal
interests

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company

SREGESE 1 TLRR
Ordinary Shares of HK$1 each

B a% .

ARVER B
Number of underlying
shares pursuant to
share options

Percentage
of total
issued shares

Family Corporate Other
interests [EESY EEY

EF5 Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000 - - 55435384 - 55,544,384 42.88%
(FitzE1)
(Note 1)
P Lo Fai Shing Francis - - - 55435384 1,080,000 56,515,384 43.63%
(WH3E1)
(Note 1)
Ba Mak Yee Mei 1,180,000 - - - 520,000 1,700,000 1.31%
FEH Peggy Lee 402,000 - - - 393,000 795,000 0.61%
BRERK Chan Chee Shing 409,500 - - - - 409,500 0.32%
(R-Z=24F (resigned on (GEX)
+A—BEHT) 1 October 2020) (Note 2)
BEE1 1t E A1 B Neblett Investments Limited Note 1:  These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited (“Neblett”)
([Neblett |) & CFJ Holdings Limited ([ CFJ ) and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ”). These companies are beneficially
BE - ZERAD R EMIENLERS owned by two separate trusts of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HAENBEEBAREEBRIBERHEHN and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis are the discretionary objects. Both Mr
EEMBERES  BHRBLENRERE Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Mr. Lo Fai Shing Francis, by virtue of
FEEREEAZEETNRERE their interests in the trusts as the discretionary objects and as the
HROED X055 AKRQTBEHR Executive Chairman and Executive Director & Chief Executive
TERBNRAITESFRITHER - B Officer of the Company respectively, were deemed interested in
18 1 #E %5 Neblett &2 CFIFT 5 & B 10 &9 the shares held by Neblett and CFJ.
e o
MzE2: WERMDAREREER T -_TF Note 2:  These shares were held by Mr Chan Chee Shing as at the date of

TA-BREFRTESERMRKA
AR A 38 75 1 ) 32 55 AR A0 R 2R W IO 1
BHERTBRE -

his resignation as Non-executive Director on 1 October 2020 and
such share interests disclosure would be ceased after his
resignation pursuant to the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) TERPEREBBRAT ([ KPIER (b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")

EFNESITRARNKG - HEK
fRREEPHADERMNRE (&)

30

2] ks

EFRS

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

R ERERIER (BB
Number of non-voting deferred shares
RiGtEm QelEm AfEn

Family Corporate Other
interests  interests  interests

(EPN:
Personal
IIEESS

279,357 - 290,857
(f7E3)
(Note 3)

11,500 -

M5E3: LSRR 1) B Pengto International Limited
BE  ZARABRRBTEBERS -

BT ARSI RTR

B bat R N[ BERRHERT 8] —EFFT IR R
ON - R R BB R E SR G 5352 1548
TEFHELDMER  IRRIZESTR
NEM XA ARRE] R RAR - B
ZE-—F=ZRA=+—H ARFE=SR
S m T A B st PR E R BB ek R
mTA\ENTR  HRERARARSKE
ERIARECE B (AR A EFEHEXVE
TR EE) BBk - BRERMD S EREE
B E RS A R ©

EEZRBERTBRABREBEARRGFBRE
sHE ([ E ) rEB SIS
TREN T X[ RERCRERT &) — &6 -

Note 3:  These shares were held by Pengto International Limited, a
company owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung solely.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the
section “Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March
2021, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen
years of age had any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had been entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executive’s interests under the
Share Option Scheme of the Company (“Share Option
Scheme”) are also set out in the section “Share Option
Scheme” below.



RBz Rt &
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(@) BEREFBZENEERRNRRAZER
BRTARBEEFAT  BREMALE
BRENEIAER B (BFEFRTE
ERBUFNTER) ASMABRE
AHERERX AR ([EERARAD &
THREHEE REEERRRERBA
KMBR Mz - WEEARBRERT
A o

(o) MRERETEAT EFEEERBR
BEAAEBRARAZRZBRE - LR
BARERD  AERASERTII=
HRM&ERE  \RBREXTEHE
AEMXME A RERMENHRD BT
B (WNERBRERT B RES
XBEMIMEERERMBOBRN T
U T B R (i) D T A ©

O MmZFE-_—FXNA-_+NB: RBE
BRESETTFTETORNDEE A
1,343,5281% " 15 B AR R B #ITIRA
491.04% - RIFERRETE - S2HE
REZERERTE B IEMEE+ =@
AEIMAIREARMDEE MEHBAEER
AIEEITIRMDEI1% ©

(d) BREASZERBAEtTE B_Z—
—FNAEtBEE-_Z_—FNANXHIt-

HE-Z-—45=F=1+—HAILFERN K&
BEEZRESRERERETE - UREEE
TTERTFARERAABRG (R —F=
A=+—B0NERMEREKI17.02T(ZE
ZEF BEE147470)) MEERE - RS
TR o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 31 March 2021, details of the Share Option Scheme are as
follows:

(a

(0

(d)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; to provide incentives or rewards to
any employee, Director (including Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Director) or officer of any
member of the Group or any related trust or company (the
“Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote the
long term financial success of the Company by aligning the
interests of option holders to shareholders of the Company.

Under the Share Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any of the Option Scheme
Qualifying Grantee to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price which shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

As at 29 June 2021, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 1,343,528 shares
which represented approximately 1.04% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at that date. The maximum
entitlement for any one participant under the Share Option
Scheme shall not in any twelve months period up to the date
of grant exceed 1% of the Company's shares in issue.

The life of the Share Option Scheme is 10 years commencing
on 7 September 2011 and expiring on 6 September 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors and
employees of the Group had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31
March 2021 was HK$17.02 (2020: HK$14.74)) granted for HK$1
consideration under the Share Option Scheme.
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WAREHE o) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

WNoE-—F=A=+—01 - BIE:T2IET  Asat 31 March 2021, the total grant date fair value of unexercised
THRITPERBNASEBRIEZRBIGRE  vested options and unvested options, measured in accordance
BEEE 1)) PRl @ st R T ERIEFEB AR with the accounting policy set out in note 1(qg)(i) to the financial
BELELABES701,000(ZE-F4H : statements, amounted to HK$8,701,000 (2020: HK$8,046,000)
7B #8,046,0007T) © BEAXHEIC K T - #2888 under the Share Option Scheme. The options are unlisted. Once
% BEABRBRTHEBRERE 1RAAT vested, each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
SREESE 1 TEE - BERAAERER  ordinary share of HK$1 each of the Company. Assuming that all
—E-—HE=A=+—HAHYETE  AKAF the options outstanding as at 31 March 2021 are exercised, the
Fri8 5018 581 97,627,000t (—ZE =24 :  Company will receive proceeds of HK$97,627,000 (2020:
75#81,103,0007T) ° HK$81,103,000).

{TiEHRE ¥
Weighted average
Closing price price of closing
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of per share price per share
options  options options options options options immediately immediately
outstanding  granted lapsed  cancelled  exercised  outstanding  Exercise  before date before date
Date Exercisable at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March price of grant of exercise
granted period 2020  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2021 pershare  of options of options
i S

Sk i 54
BEm J'Elmh strq?

HKS HKS

BER(ZF) @=T—1fF —TRF 40,000 - - - - 40,000 2070 20.80 -
Lo Fai Shing Francis MA=+H mA—A
(Director) () 20 April 2015 i —
=A=1—H
(GiEa))
1 April 2016
to 31 March 2022
(Note 1)

b)) =F-N\F —E-hEF 40,000 - - (40,000) - - 3014 30.25 -
mA=+H mA—A
(b)20 Aprii2018  E-ZT-THF
ZA=t+-H
(Fi5¥3)
1 April 2019
10 31 March 2025
(Note 3)

(—ZT-ZF —T-—F - 40,000 - - - 40,000 17.90 17.84 -
+ARA MmA—A
(©) 6 July 2020 E-E4F
=R=+—H
(Fi#3t5)
1 April 2021
t0 31 March 2027
(Note 5)

) =Z=ZF S5 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 17.08 17.12 -
NA+H mA—A
(d) 10 August RIECLE
2020 =ZA=1+-H

1 April 2021

t0 31 March 2027
(Note 5)
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Aemm BREHE # e BRIERE (TEE FHRHE

Weighted average

Closing price price of closing

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of per share price per share

options  options options options options options immediately immediately

outstanding  granted lapsed  cancelled  exercised  outstanding Exercise before date before date

Date Exercisable at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March price of grant of exercise

granted period 2020 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2021 pershare  of options of option

HK$

LHER(EE) @ =Z—1%F ZE-RF 220,000 - - - - 220,000  20.70 20.80 -

Mak Yee Mei mA=+H MA—H
(Director) (a) 20 April 2015 S

=A=1+-H
(Fr5E1)
1 April 2016
to 31 March 2022
(Note 1)

(b) —Z=-ZF —E--F - 300,000 - - - 300,000  17.08 17.12 -
NA+E MA—H

(b) 10 August e
2020 =A=+-H

(Fi3£5)

1 April 2021

t0 31 March 2027

(Note 5)

FTER(EF) (@ =Z—1F ZTRF 60,000 - - - - 60,000  20.70 20.80 -
Peggy Lee mA=+A mA—A
(Director) (a) 20 April 2015 i S——
=RA=1+—H
(F3E1)
1 April 2016
to 31 March 2022
(Note 1)

() =2—HF —TRE 33,000 - - - 33,000 22.20 21.90 -
+tAZH +A-8
(b) 2 October [
2015 NA=TH
(Fi5x2)
1 October 2016
to 30 September
2022
(Note 2)

(0 =Z=ZF T - 300,000 - - - 300,000 17.08 17.12 -
NAt+B MA—A
(c) 10 August RIECLE
2020 ZA=1+-H

(k)
1 April 2021
t0 31 March 2027
(Note 5)

R —“T-hEF —EREF 600,000 - (600,000) - - - 2070 20.80 -
(2% mA=+A mA—H
R-F-FF 20 April 2015 i —
TA—REHE) =A=t-H
Chan Chee Shing (BitzE)
(Director, 1 April 2016
resigned to 31 March 2022
on 1 October (Note 1)

2020)
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Employees

B8

Employees

{1

Employee

&8

Employees

&8

Employees

B8

Employee

Date
granted

20 April 2015

—E-N\F
mA=+A
20 April 2018

2 \F
+=A+NR
18 December
2018

e e 23
+ARAE
6 July 2020

kSt 23
NATHE
10 August 2020

—Z-ZF
+ZA=+H
30 December
2020

AR

Exercisable
period

=RA=t—H
(Bit3E1)

1 April 2016

t0 31 March 2022
(Note 1)

—TNF
MA—H
Z-ZoRF
=A=t—H
(Fi3£3)

1 April 2019

t0 31 March 2025
(Note 3)

—E-NE
+A-8
Z-ZCRF
NA=+E
(GET)

1 October 2019
to 30 September
2025

(Note 4)

T
mA—H

1 April 2021
t0 31 March 2027
(Note 5)

—E--%F
mA—R
i oS
=A=t—H
(F3355)

1 April 2021

to 31 March 2027
(Note 5)

—E--F
+ZA—H
Z-T-4F
+—A=+AH
(Fizte)

1 December 2021
to 30 November
2027

(Note 6)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Number of Number of

options
outstanding
at 1 April
2020

1,395,500

1,010,000

30,000

options
granted

during
the year

- 1,000,000

720,000

300,000

Number of - Number of
options options
lapsed  cancelled
during during
theyear  the year

(92,000) -

(10,000) (1,000,000)

(60,000) -

Number of
options
exercised
during
the year

Number of
options
outstanding
at 31 March
2021

1,303,500

30,000

940,000

720,000

300,000

Exercise
price
per share

20.70

30.14

26.42

17.90

17.08

17.76

Closing price
per share
immediately
before date
of grant

of options

20.80

30.25

2635

17.84

17.12

17.70

FHRHE
Weighted average
price of closing
price per share
immediately
before date

of exercise

of options

A
o
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M1 BERESAHRUTHMERE  10%R=%
—RNFOA—HHBB  15%R_F—+tFMW
A—HBHEEB 20— N \FHA—HRE
B 255% N NhFHNA—BBBERET
30% N _ZE_TEFNMA—HEEB

WeE2: BRESAHERUTHESRE  10%KR_F
—RNETA—BEB 15%R_T—tF+
A—HRE 202 -_Z—N\F+A—HE
B 255%N_T—hhEF+A—BBBERET
30%R_T_TF+A—BHEE:

M3 : BERESAHRUTHEERE  10%R=%
—NENA—HBRE 15%R T -TF
A—BHEB - 200%R-_E-_—FWMA—B5
B 25%R T __FMmA— EIEm%&ﬁ%T
30%N_ZE_=FNMA—HREB

Mika: BERESAPRUTHRESRE  10%KR=F
—NF+A—BEBE 15%R_T_TF+
A—BRE 200 _ZE_—F+A—B%
B 255%RN_TE-_—_F+7— EIEFEE&E%T
30% N _ZE_=F+A—HRE

MisEs . BERESAHIRUTHERES  10%R -
——FMNA—HEE - 15% R _T__F/N
A—HHBEB 200N _"ZT-_=FNWA—H%
B 25%R_ZT_NFOMA—BHBEHRT
30%N_ZE_RAFMA-—HEE &

BERES AHRUTEMSEE  10%KR %
——F+-_A—HBHBE 15%RN_T_—
+-A—HRBE - 20%R_T-_=F1+_-A#
—BRB 25%R_ZET-_ME+=-A—AH
HENBT0%N - -_HFE+-A—H
w%°

M5E6 -

EHRE R THERENSTREMNESDERE
IEFHEHER DRI R SRR T
(o)) K I 5E20 o

B Lt ESN  RAFEREARRE - KRR

Eﬂ[‘ﬁ% A ESEEA L - BEAR
T%% BITHA B EEREEIAR T
/\mﬁ’]?ﬁ—JLALﬂE%A$’&ETQiﬁfﬂﬂ*ﬁﬂ%
EE (AN EESFGOIAENER) DK
AR -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2 :

Note 3 :

Note 4 :

Note 5:

Note 6:

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 April 2016,
15% on 1 April 2017, 20% on 1 April 2018, 25% on 1 April 2019 and
the remaining 30% on 1 April 2020;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 October
2016, 15% on 1 October 2017, 20% on 1 October 2018, 25% on 1
October 2019 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2020;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 April 2019,
15% on 1 April 2020, 20% on 1 April 2021, 25% on 1 April 2022 and
the remaining 30% on 1 April 2023;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 October
2019, 15% on 1 October 2020, 20% on 1 October 2021, 25% on 1
October 2022 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2023;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 April 2021,
15% on 1 April 2022, 20% on 1 April 2023, 25% on 1 April 2024 and
the remaining 30% on 1 April 2025; and

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 December
2021, 15% on 1 December 2022, 20% on 1 December 2023, 25% on 1
December 2024 and the remaining 30% on 1 December 2025.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note
1(g)(ii) and note 20 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.
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BRANBERESGOIFE3B6IERERBTFNE
@R - AEMTAARRRRR - FA
RAEENZERTRABN  BMBATR=F
——F = A=t AHEAARRRBMHMEBER
MERERIOXBT

(i) Neblett (Ft5E1)

(i) CFJ

(iii) Winning Spirit International Corp. (iii) Winning Spirit International Corp.
(Twsicl) (BzE1)

(iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited (iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, were as follows:

BER/ % HEET
MERE S
Colab Bt
Shares directly Percentage
and/or of total
indirectly held issued shares
(i) Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 37.65%
(i) CFJ 6,660,000 5.14%
48,775,384 37.65%
("WSIC") (Note 1)
55,438,384 42.81%

(THITLY) (M7E2) (“HITL") (Note 2)
MisE1 0 I EREEHER —HtA Neblett B A 2 B Note 1:  These interests represented the same block of shares directly held by
1% > WSIC # 75 Neblett £ 100% f# 25 + SR Neblett. WSIC owned 100% interest in Neblett and was therefore
BEEE Neblett FTEIZIFERMAER & deemed interested in the shares directly held by Neblett; and
M2 0 BHTLEAZSHMET Y P AMBEA3,000 Note2: Except for 3,000 shares held by HITL as trustee for other trusts, these

B& (0 A b 55 4 25 29 8 [R] — Bt B Neblett &
CAEERBBZRMG -HTLAMERZER
BE (BT ARBESER) REBHAL
F(ATEEZHR)NETZXTA  HE
WSIC R CFIE)100% #E @ - R AR E
M AR FTEZE T ARG Oz -

LB REA /TR

BREMFEEN R —F=A=+—
B RARRERE S GHF 336 FREMHE
TFEVERPTEl - WEBRA QB ML AR
iy B bR R

interests represented the same block of shares directly held by Neblett
and CFJ. HITL, in its capacity as a trustee of two separate trusts of which
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (as founder and discretionary object) and Mr Lo
Fai Shing Francis (as discretionary object), owned 100% interest in WSIC
and CFJ and was therefore deemed interested in the shares directly held
by these companies.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2021.
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WRFER  ARRIDAERBMAC(EZ L™
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FEAREXSEAERX S

RBRELTHRAFEAAZNEHRRTE - AEE
FHINA THERER 5 REERX H RIS -

HEVARAR ((BL]) WEEHZE

(@ ARREREMELAA-BWEIULE
—MREE fBEHH T N\F=A
—ARBE_T-_—F_A=-F+/\HLAE
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HEVHHERRFBRINARRA
HARZZE-—N\F_AZt++BHZRAMF -

REE-Z-N\E=A=+—H - —%
—hWE=A=+—B8 ZZT-FF=H4
—t+—BAk=ZZF-_—F=A=+—H1
BEXRAVBRFECFE LR A
75 1,040,000 & 3,120,000 7T
75153,120,000 7T K & #5 2,860,000 7T (1~
PREEEBREM) BE-T-_—F
—A=1+—HIFENTHEeBR A
2,756,000 F BEREE=ZZT=_—F = H
=+—H5%2,860,000 THIFEE LR -

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The particulars of the following continuing connected transaction
and connected transaction of the Group are set out below in
compliance with the reporting requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")

(@) FFFL leased a property from Hibony for a term of three years
from 1 March 2018 to 28 February 2021 to operate a fast
food restaurant. As Hibony is an associate of Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman and substantial shareholder
of the Company), the entering into the lease constituted
continuing connected transaction for the Company.

Details of the Tenancy Agreement with Hibony are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 27 February
2018.

The annual cap (excluding management fee and government
rates) for each of the financial years of the Company ending
on 31 March 2018, 31 March 2019, 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2021 is HK$1,040,000, HK$3,120,000,
HK$3,120,000 and HK$2,860,000 respectively. The rental
expenses incurred for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to HK$2,756,000, which is within the annual cap
of HK$2,860,000 for the financial year ended 31 March
2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")
(continued)

(a)

(continued)

In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
connection with the above continuing connected transaction
with Hibony (the “Transaction”), the Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
Transaction has been entered into:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent
third parties;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of agreement governing
the Transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transaction for the year
ended 31 March 2021 has not exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual value.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Transaction has expired on 28 February 2021 and the
Parties under the Transaction entered into a new tenancy
agreement as set out in the following paragraph (b).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")
(continued)

(b) On 26 February 2021, FFFL and Hibony agreed to enter into
a new tenancy agreement to renew the lease for a term of
three years from 1 March 2021 to 29 February 2024 with an
option to renew for further three years (“New Tenancy
Agreement”). Details of the New Tenancy Agreement with
Hibony are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 26 February 2021.

In accordance with HKFRS 16, “Leases”, the Group is
required to recognise the value of the right-of-use asset in
connection with the New Tenancy Agreement and this
transaction will be regarded as an acquisition of an asset by
the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules. Hibony is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being an
associate of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung who is an Executive
Chairman and substantial shareholder of the Company, as
defined under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the entering
into of the New Tenancy Agreement constitutes connected
transaction of the Company.

The value of the right-of-use asset to be recognised by the
Group under the New Tenancy Agreement is approximately
HK$12,879,000.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the continuing connected transaction, connected
transaction and material related party transactions are set out in
“Continuing connected transaction and connected transaction”
on pages 37 to 39 and in note 27 to the financial statements
respectively.

Save for the above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in this annual report,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in this annual report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that required the Company to enter
into an agreement that would or might result in the Company
issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company did not
issue any debenture.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which is
in force throughout the year and up to the date of this annual
report to provide appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

BANK LOAN

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had no bank
loan.

FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 171 of the
annual report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 172 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, save and except that
the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation, details
of which and the reasons for the deviation are stated below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”).
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors have taken decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of all Directors, as such, it has adopted
terms of reference for corporate governance functions that are in
line with the CG Code.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises the four Executive Directors and the senior management
of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above-
mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Peggy Lee

Non-executive Director
Chan Chee Shing (resigned on 1 October 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")
Ng Chi Keung

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The representation of INEDs is
more than one third of the Board. A list containing the names of
the Directors with their roles and functions has been published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 21 to 25
of this annual report. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive
Chairman) is the father of Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis. Other than the
family relationship disclosed above, there is no relationship among
Directors of the Board and in particular, between the Executive
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any
relationship or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgment of the INEDs. Accordingly,
the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Five full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2021 and attendance record of each Director is set out
below:

HERE,
VN

Number of

meetings
attended/held

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 5/5
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5
Mak Yee Mei 5/5
Peggy Lee 5/5
Non-executive Director

Chan Chee Shing (resigned on 1 October 2020) 2/5
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Chi Keung 5/5
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 5/5
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 5/5
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 5/5
Peter Wan Kam To 5/5
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All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”). The statement of the auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company is set out on pages 60 to 67 in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report. The Directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, confirm that there are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by reading materials or by attending training courses/
seminars (as summarised as below) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and skills of a director
of a listed corporation.

BB &R KRB
BEIIRE e
Reading Materials

and/or
Attending Training
Courses/Seminar

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Peggy Lee

AR NRNEN

Non-executive Director
Chan Chee Shing (resigned on 1 October 2020)

AN

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ng Chi Keung

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

AN N N NN

AEMEEHRAESRH EMRY - X

HROGEER -

&35  The Company Secretary provides regular updates on the latest
BHURHMEEHENRHIEZHRERE
o UHEFBREREANEE R CREREN

changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with reading materials relating to the latest development of
regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and
responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Lo Fai Shing Francis respectively
whose roles are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years;
however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board considers that
the exemption of both the Chairman and the Managing Director (the
Chief Executive Officer) of the Company from such retirement by
rotation provisions would provide the Group with strong and
consistent leadership, efficient use of resources, effective planning,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies and
business plans. The Board believes that it would be in the best
interest of the Company for such Directors to continue to be
exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board. Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available at the website of the Company.

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors (other than any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director) for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
provided that each Director (other than any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director) including those appointed for
a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Currently, all INEDs are appointed for a specific term of three

years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the
Shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with the CG
Code and available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies and
recommends to the Board suitable candidate(s) to stand for
election by Shareholders at annual general meeting, or when
necessary, to fill vacancies on the Board.

Under the Policy for Diversity of the Company (“Diversity Policy”),
appointment of Board members will be made on merit with due
regard of benefits of diversity on the Board such as having
differences in the skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, gender, age and other qualities of
directors. The Board believes that the Diversity Policy will promote
effective decision-making and better governance and allow the
Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions to
corporate issues.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy (“Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedure when considering the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the Company’s
business.

The selection criteria including but not limited to the following:

(@) Age, gender, skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and other qualities of the candidate;

(b)  Effect of such appointment on the Board’'s composition and
diversity;

(©)  Potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity;

(d) Needs of the Board for particular expertise, skills or

experience;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Commitment to devote adequate time to discharge his or
her duties as a member of the Board;

Any potential or actual conflict of interests that may arise if
the candidate is selected,

For appointment of the INED, the number of years the
candidate has served and the factors as set out in the Listing
Rules for determining the independence; and

Other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination
Committee on a case-by-case basis.

Under the Nomination Policy, nomination procedure is summarised
as below:

(a

(b)

For appointment of new Director(s) by the Board, the
Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to identify
suitable candidates (or may seek assistance from external
consultancy agencies, if necessary) and evaluate potential
candidates based on the selection criteria set out above
through a physical meeting (unless it is impractical that the
physical meeting be held) to rank the candidates by order of
preference based on the selection criteria and determine
whether the candidate is qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee shall provide all relevant information
of the potential candidate (may including the terms and
conditions of the appointment) and make recommendation
to the Board for consideration and the Board, if considered
appropriate, shall approve the appointment of the proposed
candidate as new Director(s).

For re-appointment of Director(s) in a general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee is delegated by the
Board to review the overall contribution made by the retiring
Director(s) and take into account the selection criteria set out
above before make recommendation to the Board for re-
appointment. Also, the Nomination Committee shall conduct
such review through a physical meeting (unless it is
impractical that a physical meeting be held). Based on the
review made by the Nomination Committee, the Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders on retiring
Director(s) standing for re-election at the annual general
meeting and provide the biographical information of the
retiring Director(s) in accordance with the Listing Rules to
enable the Shareholders to make an informed decision on
the re-election of such Director(s) at the annual general
meeting.
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REEZA® ©) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(0 mEFexlREAARAFREAE LIE (0 For any candidate (other than a Retiring Director(s))
HEMRBEAGRTIESZRIN 28E nominated by the Board or Shareholders to stand for
EME  RBLZEEREWRIREZEZRR election as a Director in a general meeting of the Company,
BFRAZBEERE  BIRE X the Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
P2 B ERTEREERABAR & proposal of nomination and the biographical information of
EeRBRLZESNEZNIEELS the candidate(s), evaluate his/her/their suitability based on
T CES N NP AR E S the same criteria set out above. The Board, under advice of
S EHRENREIEREEREE - the Nomination Committee, may or may not make

recommendation to Shareholders on their voting to the
proposed election in the relevant announcement and/or
circular to Shareholders.

HE-_ZT-—#=RA=+—HILEERNL7TT During the year ended 31 March 2021, one Nomination

—RRREEeed UK ESZeMEE - Committee meeting was held to review the structure, size and

ABRABK (BIERRE M R&BFE) 57 composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of

BB I ITEEM B RIBIEIRA SR the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs, to make

ERRIEFETNEFTGREESR - recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Directors pursuant to the Nomination Policy.

B EMLRDENT The attendance record of each member is as follows:

BB RS & IR

Number of
meetings
attended/held
HITES Executive Director

EFEE (EE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 11

BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
2| B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 171
FEEE Peter Wan Kam To 1M1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, Mr Ng Chi
Keung, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen. Mr
Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. Remuneration Committee adopts written terms of
reference that are in line with the CG Code and are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held to assess performance of executive
directors, review the remuneration of Directors annually and
approve the terms of executive directors’ service contracts.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HEIRE SN
Number of

meetings
attended/held

Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 171
Ng Chi Keung 11
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 1”71
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four INEDs, Mr Ng Chi Keung, Mr
Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan
Kam To. Mr Peter Wan Kam To is the chairman of the Audit
Committee which meets at least twice a year with the Company’s
auditor.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board for approval.
It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature of the
external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has written terms of reference which are in line with
the CG Code and are available on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management’s
responses; and to evaluate the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE SR E
Number of

meetings
attended/held

BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

FIRE(EE) Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 202
REE Ng Chi Keung 22
PR ELAF Joseph Chan Kai Nin 212
BRR Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/2
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

JE N FREEMMERMT ¢ the auditor of the Company were as follows:
2020
BT TT BT T
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHIEEEMB Review fee for interim results 556 616
PFEEERE Audit fee for final results 3,297 3,427
BIERHBESRREMNIEEZIRS  Non-audit services which covered
provision of tax compliance services 223 249
L] Total 4,076 4,292
LFRWE COMPANY SECRETARY

BERNERARBZ AR WERIITES -
ERARIME B NEXEEFSURRES
EREZHAERRRRY  UNEREFEIE
FFRFEER AR  RARIGN - BE=F
“—F=ZA=T-HLEFEER KEEITD
R+ R/ Z REEEE -

BEEERABEZERRE

REBRRERAKE R GLE RN S ERRE
Z EESRARUMBEERAKENAR
EENABEERG  URRZEETRARE
I R A EBES IR B A U RORR AT THF ©

REZGRRE ERZECHHEARERE
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M EHERECEERMREOMEMER - AEBM
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Ms Mak Yee Mei is the Company Secretary and Executive Director
of the Company. As the Company Secretary, Ms Mak supports the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
the Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. During the year ended 31 March 2021, she
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the Group
may be exposed to, the Board is responsible for establishing and
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted.

With delegation from the Board, the Audit Committee has already
reviewed its risk management framework and processes and has
implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise that
aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular, the
Group has developed, approved and implemented a risk
management system, which is supported by its approved risk
management policy. Moreover, the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective
system of internal control and risk management.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)
Risk Governance Structure

The Group's governance structure for its risk management system
is shown in the diagram below. Each party has well defined roles
and responsibilities.

=g

Board of Directors

EREEe
Audit Committee
| l |
LSS [R\B B PR T VAR
Internal Audit Department Risk Management Working Group
EHMxE
Department Heads

BEFNEZAGREFNT : The major roles and responsibilities of each party are as follows:
BExg Board of Directors

e YHAEEMEKREIENRAINEIEERASZ o I ultimately responsible for the risk management and

BB internal controls of the Group;

o FHME BEAKEERERKE SRR
A ERAEE REE (FARER
Bimar) + &

s BMREFHRLRREREE KA
ERERGBERIL -

54

o Evaluates and provide direction to the Group on the nature
and extent of the risks that shall be taken in achieving its
objectives (i.e. setting the risk appetite); and

o Ensures the review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems is conducted at
least annually.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)
Audit Committee

o Reviews the Group’s risk management framework and
internal controls with the Risk Management Working Group
at least annually, on behalf of the Board,;

o Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment during the
Audit Committee meeting, including the nature and extent
of significant risks and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in these risks and in its business and the external
environment;

o Considers the results of any investigation into the Group's
risk management framework and internal controls, as
delegated by the Board or that it performs on its own
initiative, and the management'’s responses to the findings
of such investigations; and

o Performs an annual review of the Internal Audit Department
including the adequacy of its budget and resources, the
qualifications and experience of its management and staff,
and the quality of its training program.

Risk Management Working Group

o Assists the Board and Audit Committee in overseeing the
risk management framework;

. Provides recommendations to the Board and Audit
Committee relating to the design or modification of the risk
management framework; and

° Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment and
submits these to the Audit Committee for its review.

Internal Audit Department

e Acts as independent assessor of the risk management system
by performing assessments of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management system; and

o Reports to the Audit Committee on the results of its
independent assessments.

KPRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)
Department Heads

e Act as risk owners and manage risks during their day-to-day
operations;

o Identify and assess risks associated with business activities
within their own departments; and

e Implement risk mitigation plans to remedy the identified
risks.

Risk Assessment Methodology

The Group’s methodology for its risk assessment comprises of six
core phases, namely risk identification, risk appetite formulation,
risk assessment and measurement, formulation or update of key
risk register, risk monitoring and reporting, and disclosures. These
processes are performed at least once a year to address changes
in the Group's business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2021, covering all
material controls such as strategic, operational, financial and
regulatory controls. The Internal Audit Department had performed
independent reviews of the risk management system and had
reported the results to the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, also conducted an
annual review of the Internal Audit Department, and accounting
and financial reporting functions, including the adequacy of their
budget and resources, the qualifications and experience of
management and staff, and the quality of its training program, in
order to ensure that they are able to provide sufficient coverage of
the Group’s key risk issues.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Our Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while the management is responsible to design and
implement an internal control system to manage risks. The Board
is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board is
satisfied with the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems currently put in place for the Group.

Communications of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Group and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Group to make appropriate
decisions and responses to mitigate or address any risk events,
relevant information on the incident needs to be communicated
by and to the right functions and individuals, completely and
accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, written policy has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.

KPRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company'’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend Shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly.

Directors had attended the annual general meeting (“AGM") and
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company both held on
10 September 2020 with the attendance records as follows:

BREFAE BRRFIAE
B g,

AN
DRI

N
SERINE
AGM SGM
attended/ attended/
held held

HITES Executive Directors

BHG (BTERE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 11 11
BV (7THAAH) Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer) 1/1 11
Py T Mak Yee Mei 11 11
5 Peggy Lee 171 171
FYITES Non-executive Director

BRER (R =—EFE-ZF4F+ H—HEHE) Chan Chee Shing (resigned on 1 October 2020) 1/1 11
BIYKHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

RiE Ng Chi Keung 11 171
PR EK4F Joseph Chan Kai Nin 1”1 1”1
2 B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11 1”1
HH = Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 0/1 0/1
Fi8H Peter Wan Kam To 11 11

RBERZERERD - EWRARERZMA
A RRABAARABREIASLNE
REFRR - ARFWUEIIE LHBIR A AR
BREFIAGZEF BERRBERAE LIER
ERZEFEBRREREFHREA ZEFHK
RHAN o

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
and the Bye-laws, Shareholders may convene special general
meetings of the Company and put forward proposals at general
meetings. Procedures on how Shareholders can convene a special
general meetings, put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director are also
available at Company’s website for Shareholders’ information.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
(continued)

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company's website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically. Shareholders may also at any time send
their enquiries and concerns in writing to the Company through
channel set out in the “IR Contact” at the section of Investor
Relations at the Company’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the criteria to be adopted when considering
declaration and payment of dividend with aims to provide stable
and sustainable returns to the Shareholders.

The Board may consider declaring and paying to the Shareholders
by taking into account of the following factors, among others, (i)
financial performance; (ii) retained earnings and distributable
reserve; (iii) cash flow; (iv) debt to equity ratio; (v) working capital
requirements; (vi) capital expenditure requirements; (vii)
investment requirements; (viii) future prospects and expansion
plans; (ix) general business conditions and strategies; (x) general
economic conditions and (xi) other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

Such declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
subject to all applicable laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws.

The Board shall review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
shall update, amend or modify it whenever necessary.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has published an up-to-date consolidated version of
its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31
March 2021, there has been no change to these Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 68 to 170, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code"”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on this matter.
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Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
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Refer to note 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 90 to 92
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The key audit matter

BENENAEEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AR L KB EMBEUERNSFYH E5EE
BHRABRZE - Al ETEBNERREEAR
Htp%  HBENEE(BERREHEMENRRTIRE R
B ARASFMIXNEANEN) MEEREELBBL
LEBELANARASREALERBERREENR
Hip¥Z - MR E2ERD -

Ao mf

Y

BEASREMHREMNENERNRR  UEEEE
BETHRERTRENBERRFRE ([#EF]) -

Py
[=]

e

Local economic conditions and the level of competition
from other similar restaurants impact the performance of
the Group's fast food restaurants. Therefore there is a risk
that the values of right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment (which generally comprises leasehold
improvements, equipment, air conditioning systems and
cutlery and utensils), in certain restaurants may not be
recoverable in full through the future cash flows to be
generated from the operations of those restaurants or from
disposal of the related right-of-use assets and other
property, plant and equipment.

Management reviews the performance of individual
restaurants at the end of each reporting period to identify if
any restaurant displays negative performance indicators
(“indicators") which could indicate impairment.

BB TRHEEREEEAREMYE  EENRERNE
FEREMAITHERZF B

o FMABEEBHRERSENEL  ZREEEHESHER
M RRERERARE I EREENREEE X
SEGHEUNER  FEEEEERUTREDRE
TERIBS TR M A T0A » T2 BB IR E R R ERHE 2
BERFEE @ ATRERARERE

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
right-of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
included the following:

e evaluating management’s identification of impairment
indicators and considering whether the discounted cash
flow forecasts on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis
supported the carrying value of the relevant assets and
assessing the methodology adopted by management in
its preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards. We also considered whether the
management’s impairment assessments indicated that a
reversal of previously recognised impairment was
required,;

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

61



62

BB AR
Independent Auditor’s Report

BRESFER
The key audit matter

BENEHNAEEZSBEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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The key audit matter

BENEHNAEEZSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Where indicators of impairment are identified, the value in
use of the right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment in these restaurants is determined by
management on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis based on
a discounted cash flow analysis. Based on the assessment,
the Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$93.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The value in use model used to assess the risk of
impairment is based on a number of assumptions, including
estimations of future revenue, food cost inflation, staff cost
inflation and the discount rate applied.

We identified assessing potential impairment of right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment as a key
audit matter because of the significance of right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment to the
consolidated financial statements and because of the
significant management judgement and estimation
required, which can be subjective.

comparing the actual performance and results of the
selected restaurants for the current year with the key
assumptions and forecasts adopted by management in
the discounted cash flow forecasts for the prior year to
assess whether there is any indicator of management bias
and making enquiries of management as to the reasons
for any significant variations identified and whether these
were considered in the current year’'s key assumptions
and forecasts;

critically evaluating the key assumptions and forecasts
adopted by management in its preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts by referring to industry
and other available third party information, recent
financial performance of the fast food operations and
management’s budgets and plans for the operations in
2021/2022 and beyond;

assessing the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar listed
catering groups in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
taking into consideration location and company specific
risk premiums;

obtaining management’s sensitivity analyses of the
discount rates, future revenue, food cost inflation and
staff cost inflation and considering the resulting impact
on the impairment charge for the year and whether there
is any indicator of management bias; and

assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and other
property, plant and equipment, including the key
assumptions and sensitivities to changes in such
assumptions, with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2021
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meBEx
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HEZ-—F=A=+—ALFECUEBIIT)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

A Revenue 3(a) 2,646,469 3,030,198
HEKA Cost of sales (2,318,873) (2,752,830)
ER Gross profit 327,596 277,368
HAb W A Other revenue 4 93,785 24,380
Hlkas(B518) F58 Other net gain/(loss) 4 6,136 (1,285)
HEEH Selling expenses (34,511) (32,722)
1TEE A Administrative expenses (115,526) (126,078)

Habs - HBERFRMER  Impairment losses on other property, plant

BEEE and equipment 10(d) (34,310) (8,340)
EREEERNRERRE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 1 (59,377) (17,498)
KEMFHEEE Valuation losses on investment properties 10(a), 10(b) (8,570) (5,750)
Fg e Profit from operations 175,223 110,075
A Bk AN Finance costs 5(a) (36,824) (37,995)
BR%4 B 5% A Profit before taxation 5 138,399 72,080
FT1EH: Income tax 6(a) 15,218 (11,213)

AATEZRREGARERE Profit for the year attributable to equity

Y Al shareholders of the Company 153,617 60,867
SREF Earnings per share 9
HAR Basic 118.59 {llicents  47.03 {llicents
g Diluted 118.59 {llicents  46.96 {licents

BISEF170EHM T B AT B®MEKREO —E  The notes on pages 75 to 170 form part of these financial
5o BRARRERRRNRSMFFIEHIIN  statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
MaE23(b) ° the Company are set out in note 23(b).



SeBahEMZEKER
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

HE_ZT-—F=A=+—HIEFECAUBEIITR)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AAREERREGRFEE ST Profit for the year attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company 153,617 60,867
AEEHMEEEES : Other comprehensive income for the year:
HEakE#H BRI A)IEH - Item that may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:

WE R N B A RIMBI SR E  Exchange differences on translation of financial
HFE H =58 statements of subsidiaries in Mainland China 4,737 (2,845)
AAREERREERFER2E Total comprehensive income for the year
W45 attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company 158,354 58,022

FEISEFIT0EWMMEEBAY BFE KD  The notes on pages 75 to 170 form part of these financial
—& 5 e statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZEZ—F=A=1+—H (ABEH|RK)
At 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ERBEE Non-current assets
EE Investment properties 10(a) 29,830 38,400
Hiby% - BN ERE Other property, plant and equipment 10(a) 424,866 474,711
EREESE Right-of-use assets 11 1,110,609 1,433,611
1,565,305 1,946,722
FEWFRE X Lease receivables 2,768 =
RS Goodwill 12 1,001 1,001
B ES Rental deposits paid 72,737 76,732
HEMEemEE Other financial assets 13 - 15,821
BEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 21(b) 3,935 22
1,645,746 2,040,298
TEEE Current assets
75 Inventories 14(a) 46,008 50,828
78 LA BR 30 RN EL Ath e Uk =R Trade and other receivables 15 99,764 90,181
HEthomEE Other financial assets 13 16,745 3,141
A] U [B] A5 B 7 30 Current tax recoverable 21(a) 17,633 13,423
BITERRIREMILEZE  Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
=t 16 622,143 511,047
802,293 668,620
mEEE Current liabilities
JE < BR SR RN EL Ath FE A 3K Trade and other payables 17 359,778 418,445
HEAaE Lease liabilities 18 433,320 479,851
FET AN EAL 1B Current tax payable 21(a) 20 =
i Provisions 22 18,784 17,356
811,902 915,652
REBAERE Net current liabilities (9,609) (247,032)
EEABRABARSE Total assets less current liabilities 1,636,137 1,793,266



e BRI R
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZTZ—F=A=1+—8(ABBIIR)
At 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

kREBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAR Lease liabilities 18 785,222 981,512
EERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 1,795 14,036
DR E%ES Rental deposits received 1,768 1,173
B Provisions 22 69,516 75,739
858,301 1,072,460
EEFE NET ASSETS 777,836 720,806
BEARNRE Capital and reserves 23
RN Share capital 129,533 129,533
& Reserves 648,303 591,273
R TOTAL EQUITY 777,836 720,806

BEFeNRN_ZT-_—F A=+ NLB#%E Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

WRFAJEEH o 29 June 2021.
ZEWG & E R
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Lo Fai Shing Francis
HITEE 7T AA %,
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

FISEFIT0ENMEE AN B RERA  The notes on pages 75 to 170 form part of these financial

—& o statements.
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GERagEX
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZ-—F=A=1+—RHILFE CUEEIIT)
For the Year Ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share
capital
Tt
$'000

HiE
Note

Hn 7aN

7

Share
premium

Tt

EANEIE: Sl & S
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

&

Capital

PE 5
&

Exchange
reserve

T Hu AN
EEEY)
ShRH#E
Land and
buildings
revaluation
reserve

R
X

Retained
profits
Tt

RZB—RF At 1 April 2019
mA—H 128,650 36,131 6,470 1,945 527 603,955 777,678
BE-Z-ZF Changes in equity for year
=A=+—-Hi ended 31 March 2020:
FENRZSE
N ) Profit for the year - - - _ 60,867 60,867
Ef 2wz Other comprehensive income - - - (2,845) - - (2,845)
NEE2EKZEEEE  Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - (2,845) - 60,867 58,022
RIEMARIEL BIZE(T  Shares issued under share option
Eo)iah) scheme 23(0)(i) 883 17,385 - = = - 18,268
BITER Issue expenses = (24) - - - - 24)
FEERRERIE  Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - - (104,922) (104,922)
RELZDTRMALE  Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (29,793) (29,793)
DM RE)  Equity-settled share-based
BEMNZS transactions 5(b), 23(c)(i) — 1,340 217 — - 20 1,577
R-B-EF At 31 March 2020
=HA=+-—H 129,533 54,832 6,687 (900) 527 530,127 720,806
R-ZZB-ZF At 1 April 2020
A —H 129,533 54,832 6,687 (900) 527 530,127 720,806
BE-Z_—-F Changes in equity for year
=A=+—HL ended 31 March 2021:
FENEZSE
AEZHF Profit for the year - - - - - 153,617 153,617
Hih 2 EWe Other comprehensive income - - - 4,737 - - 4,737
REF2EIREEE  Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - 4,737 - 153,617 158,354
FAEERENMRE  Dividendsapproved inrespectof
the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - - (64,767) (64,767)
REEDEIRMAE  Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (38,860) (38,860)
8 PR AR 2K Ak B v 8 Lapse and cancellation of share
options - - (1,297) - - 1,297 -
DRSS 45 E ARG (D Equity-settled share-based
RERNR S transactions 5(b) - - 2,303 - - - 2,303
R=B=—F At 31 March 2021
=A=t+-—H 129,533 54,832 7,693 3,837 527 581,414 777,836

FISEB1INEMNHEITB AT B REN

— %5 -

The notes on pages 75 to 170 form part of these financial

statements.



FEHERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEZ-—F=A=1+—RHILFE GUBEIIT)
For the Year Ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ke ke o S
2020

F

$'000

T
$'000

T
$'000

TR Operating activities
B H Al ) Profit before taxation 138,399
HEIER Adjustments for:

HAW % - #asMR Depreciation for other property,

e plant and equipment 5(c), 10(a) 100,865
FRBEENE Depreciation for right-of-use assets 5(c), 11 443,234
HW%E - #e2MRE  Impairment losses on other property,

EONERIEN 3! plant and equipment 10(d) 34,310
FREEERRMAERE  Impairment losses on right-of-use

assets 10(d), 11 59,377
BEKA Finance costs 5(a) 36,824
FSWA Interest income 4 (4,437)
B (8RE), FHRREH (Reversal of)/provision for long service

RIS %R payments made 22(a) (1,668)
BREEMYE - IR Net loss on disposal of other property,

FEHERF R plant and equipment 4 9779
REMFHESR Valuation losses on investment

properties 10(b) 8,570
AR EENARMD A Equity-settled share-based payment

EE S expenses 5(b) 2,303

Hith Others (1,597)
SELESHHAMEE  Operating profit before changes in

Al working capital 825,959
BEESEE Changes in working capital:
BERLD,/(Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 4,819
ENEERERD Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits

(32 m) paid 2,494
JEMBR SRR EL fb JELUL R Increase in trade and other receivables

2 m (7,116)
FEBRXANE M EE  (Decrease)increase in trade and other

Cm),/#m payables (39,640)
DL ES CRd ),/ (Decrease)increase in rental deposits

0 received (342)
EEANRERGESE%EHE  Provision for long service payments

utilised 22(a) (1,251)

2B ARNBERAER Provision for reinstatement costs utilised 22(b) (3,709)
REXEBRELNRE Cash generated from operations 781,214
BUYF 2 Interest received 4,701
BERNEBNERFE Net Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (5,126)

RETHELENAS TR

Net cash generated from operating
activities

72,080

103,915
430,247

8,340
17,498
37,995

(10,862)

8,308

6,440

5,750

1,577
(1,128)

680,160

(17,2698)

(6,427)

(12,028)
31,110
2

(1,755)
(221)

673,573

11,216
(40,671)

780,789

644,118

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BHE-Z-—F=ZA=+—HILFECIEBIITR)
For the Year Ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

/4

REED
BARMYE - 2R

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of other property,

—E-—F
2021

Mt E F
Note $'000

—E-EE
2020
T Tt
$'000 $'000

BT plant and equipment (109,878) (128,015)
REHMYE IS Net proceeds from disposal of other
SEBEE SRR property, plant and equipment 299 97
Hi&mEERHAME  Proceeds from maturity of other
RE financial assets 3,100 11,366
B=ERA%REMERIT  Increase in bank deposits with more
TR than three months to maturity 6,511) =
EH&TEE?E%E'J§$*BJ} Capital element of lease rentals receipt 1,524 -
PEUFAERSHFEES  Interest element of lease rentals receipt 116 =
REZEFTANEEFE  Net cash used in investing activities (111,350) (116,552)
METE Financing activities
BB EEARE 212 1TR% D Proceeds from shares issued under share
FTis kA option scheme 23(c)(i) - 18,268
BITRIDFTESMER  Expensesincurred in connection with
the issue of shares - (24)
BIRE Dividends paid 23(b)  (103,627) (134,715)
BERITER Repayment of bank loan 16(b) - (143)
EREERSMHERES Capital element of lease rentals paid 16(b)  (424,974) (380,792)
ENEEREHNFEED  Interest element of lease rentals paid 16(b) (36,824) (37,995)
BMEEZETAMNREFEE Net cash used in financing activities (565,425) (535,401)
RENRELEYLM, Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and
Omd) B cash equivalents 104,014 (7,835)
RMUA—BHESMESE Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April
ZEY 511,047 519,854
EXgnNyE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 571 (972)
R=HA=+—HHELM Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEY 31 March 16(a) 615,632 511,047

FISEFIINNENHMTBEARAT B HRED

—#5 -

The notes on pages 75 to 170 form part of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIEBETHR » TR ABETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

1 FEFFHEK
(a) &REH
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(b) A F R AV AR B E
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RERE TSR RORE R EE -

2T -_—4F=A=+—H"' K
% @i &) & E 4 {8 /802,293,000 7T
(= ZF — T F :668,620,0007C ) 7
BB {5 4% 5811,902,000t( — &
— F 4 :915,652,0007C ) B I+ A
S E 815 % 2 & ¥ (9,609,000 7T

— = — T 4 :247,032,0007T ) © *
EHRAEBBERRDAEET B
433,320,000t HEAB (=T =
£ : 479,851,0007T) °

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 comprise the Group.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s total current assets were
$802,293,000 (2020: $668,620,000) and total current
liabilities were $811,902,000 (2020: $915,652,000). As a
result, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
$9,609,000 (2020: $247,032,000) mainly due to lease
liabilities of $433,320,000 (2020: $479,851,000)
recognised under current liabilities.

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEH - TRBUBEEZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EESREE @
(b) T HE IRV ARRELE (4F)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

/6

BREE-ZE-_—F=-A=+—HHR
BEEFEI  FAE  AEBMNRITE
H MRS MRS FE Y R622,143,000
L (=ZZ —ZF 4% :511,047,0007T) ° &
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TT(=Z =4 : 72,080,000 ) M &
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Breo E it - BRAR T 8EE IR (AT
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Despite the net current liabilities as at 31 March 2021, the
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted to
$622,143,000 (2020: $511,047,000) on the same day and
the Group reported a profit before taxation of $138,399,000
(2020: $72,080,000) and recorded net cash generated
from operating activities of $780,789,000 (2020:
$644,118,000) during the year ended 31 March 2021.
Furthermore, based on the cash flow projection prepared
by management which covers a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 March 2021, the directors are of
the opinion that anticipated cash flows generated from the
Group's operations can strengthen the Group’s financial
position and enable the Group to have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the coming twelve months from 31 March 2021.
Accordingly, the Group’s consolidated financial statements

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as
otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.
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1 FEEHEER &)
(b) A FEIRE M R BLE L (7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

EEEe TEHERSEMGLNIEH

B MRGHABANEITRRTE

X—HE ExfFeaziiHAmE

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

R MRETHERMMAKIRAE
FE - AL ER AR R

& ﬁﬁ R o

FHEERERMA(ERAUBREE
ADEAELE AR B HRREEATE
R HIET - AR EZ O AR BRI EE

RERTmAT - BIIRMEE2 -

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

ST BERAMERT

BERMAGRN T ZHELIERTH
(BABMBMERED)  EBEETNAS
MAGTHEERER - RAZF

(c

~

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have
BT H AN B E RISk A B R sk had a material effect on how the Group's results and
EWFEENTBRRAN TN LEE R financial position for current or prior periods have been
B o prepared or presented.

LR B B SR R A E A2 & AR
R AR AR R E Rl S i

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

RPGEEBEBRADE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 77
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEH - TRBUBEEZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FESHER 2 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) KT 2 &) (d) Subsidiaries

/8
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o

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)iii)).

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group'’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(j)iii)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into the following measurement category:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 1(t)(iii)).

(9) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(i)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1¢0)(ii).

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Investment properties (continued)

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease and used the property to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
Group could elect on a property-by-property basis to
classify and account for such interest as an investment
property. Any such property interest which had been
classified as an investment property was accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(i)), and the
same accounting policies were applied to that interest as
were applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments were accounted for as
described in note 1(i).

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of other property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(j)(iii)):

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over freehold or
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest;

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1(i)); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

The cost of self-constructed items of other property, plant
and equipment includes the initial estimate, where relevant
of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
other property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold land and
buildings situated
thereon

30-50 years

- &L 30-504F
EREEM
Y

- BEEAN & B 70 & B
E bz

- BtEEAMEE muEEs
T A R

- HEYHE Gk YisN=g-
MR T2

- AR & B S EP

- RAREE HFF10%-33%

- A= HFFE15%

- BIEES HFF25%

- EHib HFF10%

AEEessEEHEENT BHRM

BE(E) -

— Other properties held for

own use
Ownership interests in
leasehold land held for

own use

Leasehold improvements

Air-conditioning plant

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer systems

Others

The remaining term of
the tenancy leases

The remaining term of
the tenancy leases
The remaining term of

the tenancy leases

The remaining term of
the tenancy leases

10%-33% per annum
15% per annum
25% per annum

10% per annum

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

31



82

B 35 R AR MY R

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEH - TRBUBEEZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEHRBER®)

() HEEE

AEBRABNABBHENETH
i BEZRHNEER—BAHEERE
BE—BHE - HME—BEEA - 84
AREUCHHE M X — R Al @ B E(E
RrEHIE - AR —REEN
BE-BHHEE -FEPTEHEATE
WERNEEERNEN  EREER
ERRBBEEMELENET 2L
A - EEREREELERE -

(i) FERFABAA

REERIE A - NEERERERE
BEMHEERE HEMIRNAF
RT—EANEHEE (AAKHE
mE TERTEHE) KR &
RETERNMEOEERBNBES N
RENEEARERARGHERS
M -

FHERERL HEAGRRA
ENAMENEENFRBEREE
NEME(FEHRERSMNERELE
EHEE - A R AR R AV IR & 1B 3R A
) REOREETIRER -
iaTER R - HERBEREHRKA
FTE - YRAERMNEEFERN S
B o THURRIERK L Ry Al &
HENKBBTIAAREGENH
B RAtEERZENSTHHEARE
BTN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

(i) As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less, for the Group are primarily retail stores. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)
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The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 1(h) and 1(j)iii)), except for right-of-use assets
that meet the definition of investment property are
carried at fair value in accordance with note 1(g).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets (continued)
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When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

1¢0)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 1(i)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,
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other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the following item:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
— lease receivables

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rate where the effect of discounting
is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,
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other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,
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other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm'’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
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(continued)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the amount carried in “trade and
other payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the
risk of default of the specified debtor since the issuance
of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless
the risk that the specified debtor will default has
increased significantly since the guarantee is issued, in
which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The same
definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in note 1())

(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

other property, plant and equipment;

— right-of-use assets (other than property carried at
revalued amounts);

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iv)Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see note 1(j)(iii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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1 EERRHEE (2 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(1) 7= Uk B S50 R0 L Atk B LUK (I) Trade and other receivables
FEW R IE N AR E BB E IR RE A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
RZERBER - MBEXMZEXR unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
FEZAERELR —BREM AR receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
BESZEBRNERNZEEER - 40 time is required before payment of that consideration is
REXREBRAEGHEZWEBERER due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
ZARERBA - AIZSBIERENE an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
ESIHR o is presented as a contract asset.
EUWHRERAERAN R EZREEEES Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
1B - IR RANTIR (2 BMTEE1G) interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note
(i) e 1))

(m) B B A& K (m)Interest-bearing borrowings
MEERZARBEBRER HKAE Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
TIRTER o VIaTERE - MR EHRER value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
BN R AR AARR - F 88 recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
BB AEEBERBEERANS TR amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
RIER (BHMFE (V) ° expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's

accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

(n) FEAT BRFR AN EL Ath FE A =X (n) Trade and other payables
FERBR A E A BT I AR BET) Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
TARER o IR RE1()() Ft 2 8B 5 12 value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
REEIN - B R R H b B ;A accordance with note 1())(ii), trade and other payables are
BB AN BT R EY subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
NERX - AR ARAER discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(t)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(1)).

For a single contract with the customer, a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(v)).

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy in note 1(j)(i).

(q) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(9) Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments
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The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company'’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.



B FE R R MIEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIEZSHER - BRI LUBEZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEEHBE @) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) FRB%L (&) (r) Income tax (continued)
BETUAARENBEAEHRAE The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
MEREE=2FE8 )T ARG and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
EA AR B TE 77 EESE IR goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
B A2 ERENNEES recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
BENVIGBER (BLESHHN—I accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
DRIBRSN) - ARRHEB R RHRE (10 a business combination), and temporary differences relating
BREMEZE - RRENANEER L to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
EOE - mAER TR R AR of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
KA geE O TR E =282 B A reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
BINZ=E - BRBRARBRAIEERKRE reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
EIRNZER) - deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will

reverse in the future.

EREMERBEWE (g T8 & TR Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
BARBEAER DHBRAELERSE in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
eERSHHRRBARESEHEZ 1(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
ERERERANBETE  BIEZXS using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets
MERTURNE  MISEZEWED at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
BEEANEN BIEZSEWERK property is depreciable and is held within a business model
B B A R 25 68 & B I OH A 0 3k whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
B EERE  EMBEMIER B economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
RELEHRBALREREEHBEERS rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
BHTEHERIEESIR  BEDH deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
THRMEARELE LFERITHHE manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
SR BRERBEEEHABEHTITIR of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
FTE - substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

AEBeEGERSHAREBHELR The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
HEEMERESRE MREAEEEH the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
TR gL ELS 2 S A0 FE Bl om A LA 40 extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
HENFERNZ ZELEHRELSEY profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
EHeHEeRL: BE2NERAEE be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
ATREM S R AMER RF - B R that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
CHEEZEM - be available.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the
right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an

(v)

accrual basis.

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies
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The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while
that for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is
Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Group is Hong
Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to
that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 FERFTEHER (&)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(W) Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.



B FE R R MIEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEHR - TRHEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEGEE @) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
W) BB (&) (W) Related parties (continued)
2) & THEMMGRASE - BIEXRER (2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
EAREEAEER T conditions applies:

() Z%EBRAEENER—SE (i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
(& RE] - HEA Tﬂﬂ% group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
NIl d ik =Rz and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) " RERBES—EBNEKEER (i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
AR AEETE (B —EEME other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
EEETHKE QA Z QA member of a group of which the other entity is a
HEBRE) - member).

(il MR ERBER—E=ZA0N&= (iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

*x- party.

vy " RERRF-_FTEENEE (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
TtE ME—EBRE=FE other entity is an associate of the third entity.
BEEEEE N A] o

v) ZEBRAASESIERAE (v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
EEm sy mENESNEER benefit of employees of either the Group or an
M R BV BER R B A EH 2 - entity related to the Group.

(vi) ui ERXE LMEMBRANMR (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

A I 3k FE R o person identified in (1).

(vii) |3l 2B (1)) B R FTaR B A T 4 (vi)A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence

ZE gﬁgjq@gj]—gmngg over the entity or is a member of the key
By ZEERAR) NERERS management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
EE}\/% g of the entity).

(viii) 57 2 82 S H P8 & B Y (E T Bk (viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
BERAMAEEIAEBFT A a part, provides key management personnel services
PR EIRE A BARTS © to the Group or to the Group's parent.

—HREANFREEEAEHEEER S Close members of the family of a person are those family
WA REH EZ A AR ZEAAFERN members who may be expected to influence, or be
KEEKE © influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

RPGEEBEBRADE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 03
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether there is
any indication that right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment is estimated. Changes in
facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the
conclusion of whether an indication of impairment exists and
revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast
food restaurants and property investments. Revenue
represents the sales value of food and beverages sold to
customers and rental income and excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts. An analysis of revenue is as follows:

X-—BHONRRERMBEE

Sale of food and beverages at a point in

2,641,319 3,022,674
MERS Property rental 5,150 7,524
2,646,469 3,030,198
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Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed below:

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
Hong Kong restaurants and Mainland China restaurants,
which are organised by geographical location. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

- Hong Kong restaurants: this segment operates
restaurants in Hong Kong.

— Mainland China restaurants: this segment operates
restaurants in Mainland China.

Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
investment properties and include corporate expenses.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results of each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit
before taxation. Items not specifically attributable to
individual segments are not allocated to the reportable
segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost,
labour cost, rent and rates and depreciation charged on
other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets). The inter-segment transactions were conducted
on normal commercial terms and were priced with
reference to prevailing market prices and in the ordinary
course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported to or used
by the Group’s most senior executive management.



B RS ERAR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEHR - TRHEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 WARSBEE (&) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) B EHRE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) DEPEE(E) (i) Segment results (continued)

B E - FR T _FTF=A Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
=+—HIEFE  AEEERET as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
BREBABRSEBAAEERRE S management for the purposes of resource allocation
BMEVE R (A EEETERD B R and assessment of segment performance for the years
DERIFILE) - FEBWOT © ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 is set out below.

BEEE B A B Hih 35
Hong Kong Mainland China Other
restaurants restaurants segments

REINBEFH  Revenue from external

WA customers 2,525,542 2,905,637 115,777 117,037 5,150 7,524 2,646,469 3,030,198
REEMHIE  Inter-segment revenue

KA - - - - 1,804 4,478 1,804 4,478

REFBRA Reportable segment revenue 2,525,542 2,905,637 115777 117,037 6,954 12,002 2,648,273 3,034,676

HE5EER,/  Reportable segment profit/

(B18) (loss) 255760 96,465  (19917)  (5152) 4813 12,355 240,656 103,668
FIEHA Interest income 4,288 10,814 33 48 116 - 4,437 10,862
HEER Interest expense (34,817)  (36,324) 2,007 (1,671) - - (36824) (37,995
e Depreciation (519,003)  (510,735)  (24,175)  (22,506) (921) (921)  (544,099)  (534,162)

Hib#% - #2%  Impairment losses on other
HMREEFE  property, plant and
BR equipment (28723)  (8149) (5587 (191) - - (343100 (8340

FREAER  Impairment losses on
REEE right-of-use assets (48,538)  (16,799)  (10,839) (699) - - (59377)  (17,498)

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 07
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(FRIEZERH - BRHLABEIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 MARSBEE (&)
(b) 2 #BER 5 (&)
(ii) &2 BB FHH AR

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

Y Al Profit
B 7 AT 3R 25 43 2B 4 Tl Reportable segment profit before
taxation 240,656 103,668

KEMEGEBE Valuation losses on investment properties (8,570) (5,750)
HAib Y « HIBRARAE Impairment losses on other property,

RN SEi= plant and equipment (34,310) (8,340)
£ ARG ENREEIR Impairment losses on right-of-use assets (59,377) (17,498)
4RE R AR A Consolidated profit before taxation 138,399 72,080
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEHR - TRHEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 WARDEB®E &) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) D EBIRE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i B E R
TRIBBROAEEREINEEE
P EVRA R (i) AR B H IR E Y E -
H¥x MMz ERRE
EREE ((HEEFRRBDEE]D WM
FEER - BEHMAEZRBE
RERBIEROMIE D - 118
RIEWME - B - B R
WREREEE BEFRBDEE
R AT R RIBZ B EN BIRME
WED  WEREE - HERR
BEMNMAERARBEMADEEW
BEMEE D -

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group's investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and goodwill (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets in the case of
investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated in the case of
goodwill.

KB N P EIHA RS EE
Revenue from external customers  Specified non-current assets
—E T4 = T T4
2021 2020 2021 2020
S S S S
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
E7 (FEfft i) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 2,527,330 2,909,192 1,442,495 1,832,267
AR B i Mainland China 119,139 121,006 123,811 115,456
2,646,469 3,030,198 1,566,306 1,947,723

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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4 EftgAfEE (85i8) 98 4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET GAIN/(LOSS)

Hig A Other revenue
FLEA Interest income 4,437 10,862
AT Bh (B 5E) Government grants (note) 89,348 13,518
93,785 24,380
Httlz (&8) F8 Other net gain/(loss)
EEEMYE  MEBFREN Net loss on disposal of other property,
bkt plant and equipment (9,779) (6,440)
P& 5 e/ (B518) J$ 58 Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) 2,038 (5,669)
BERIBREER Electric and gas range incentives 5,166 4,475
S HREETE MR Profit on sale of redemption gifts 766 629
E fth JE < SRIEHE [0 Write-back of other payables 1,702 1,494
Eoh Others 6,243 4,226
6,136 (1,285)
Wizt : ZEETEARBERTREN FSMEE Note: This mainly represented subsidies approved by the Finance Committee
Eelt MR WERRIEIETE - LAST of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
EHAEARB SRS BN KL/ o Region for Food Licence Holders Subsidy Scheme to cope with the

operating pressure caused by the novel coronavirus epidemic.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEHR - TRHEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 FRiRAIAEF 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BE RS FIE B (GEA) Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) MER A (a) Finance costs
HEEEMEER (MiE16b) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) 36,824 37,995
(b) B TR A (b) Staff costs
R EHRFCRIRET IR Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 43,490 44,572
DR EE R AR AE Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
= fF 2,303 1,577
e TEREMEF (HE) Salaries, wages and other benefits (note) 688,496 973,786
734,289 1,019,935
Wizt : 3Z BB AMBE B ERITEHEBT RS Note: The item is net of the Employment Support Scheme subsidies from HKSAR
183,227,000 7T 5t 3 52 %5 51 &I 44 B 12 49 )5 58 Government of $183,227,000 (2020: $nil).

(ZF=TF:B7) -

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 1
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 BRIRpaF =) 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) HfERE (c) Other items
FERA (BFEG)) Cost of inventories (note (i) 657,543 724,679
mEEH Depreciation charge
—-HAWE - HESMR — Other property, plant and equipment 100,865 103,915
—EREEE — Right-of-use assets 443,234 430,247
ZERN N & Auditor's remuneration
- ZH RS - Audit services 3,853 4,043
- WG AR - Tax services 183 209
- B AR# — Other services 40 40
B HIHEMEMESE BN Expense relating to short-term leases and
BA  FHHEEHRE other leases with remaining lease term
—E-TF=RA=+—H% ending on or before 31 March 2020
Z AR AR 4,225 78,065
TAREa BN ZHEE Variable lease payments not included in the
REE measurement of lease liabilities 3,430 7,992
MEERE Building management fee 50,386 50,814
ek Rentals receivable
- REMEREE — Investment properties, less direct
119,000 7T outgoings of $9,000
(Z=E=F%F : 16,00071) (2020: $16,000) (3,354) (3,953)
-HEgEoHEE — Other operating sub-leases (1,787) (3,555)
BE  KEBENERSE Electricity, water and gas 141,305 167,987
minE B Logistic expense 57,586 57,182
HIERREE Repair and maintenance 36,562 32,727
BRE Sanitation 52,388 52,705
HigFmIXEARFENNER Cost of subsequent replacement of cutlery
and utensils 9,844 11,158
PHEE() : T AR RIERARARA © Note (i): The cost of inventories represents food costs.

112



B RS ERAR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEHR - TRHEBTIR)
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6 REESRMTHMRERN 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) GABERREFRNBES (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

REABLE - BB EB

loss represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

NG Provision for the year 79 16,754
LA FEEEETR Under-provision in respect of prior years 857 =
936 16,754
EEHE (M 21(b)) Deferred tax (note 21(b))
T ERAEEMERD Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (16,154) (5,541)
(15,218) 11,213

e A
A TH AR AR AN A E A8 B RE ST B 0 A
B165% (ZF - N/ T _FF:
16.5%) FTH - HEAKE N~ A F
TS5 P AR 1l R A O PR B 2 AT R S

RAMBARME  BRFEMNAE
2008 TTHITL R 58.25%  MEI NHIfE
BB E516.5%  BIEFIEH
MRH - AMEBAR TN,/ T
TERENBHRIZBRAEELETE -

HAAREENPEAMEBSREE —
T ER B _TFEEEREE
B At AEEWEFZBEA TR
A TSR AT IR o

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020/2021 is
calculated at 16.5% (2019/2020: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
tiered profits tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first $2.0 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
basis in 2019/2020.

No provision has been made for PRC corporate income tax

for 2021 and 2020, as the Group’s Mainland China
operations sustained a loss for taxation purpose.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6 IRERBRMATHMER 2 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) BB BN S HaR =8 A Est (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
BEHHER profit at applicable tax rates:

BR % A1l 7 Profit before taxation 138,399 72,080
1= B RSB0 R AR Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated

(ZZ=ZF : FEBmRH) at two-tiered profit tax regime (2020:

AENERTEBNEN two-tiered profit tax regime) 22,671 11,728
ER—THKNEERKLHNNEBART  Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary

HATRB RN E operating in another tax jurisdiction (4,894) (1,653)
AR AR TE R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,721 2,786
HAEF UG A BT 18 o 28 Tax effect of non-taxable income (46,607) (5,761)
REAMERBERAAEIEIEN  Tax effect of unused tax losses not

HIEg 2 recognised 11,005 4,087
EAEA 2 B ARERR AIIEIIRIE  Tax effect of previously unrecognised

EER R IER 2 tax losses utilised this year (5) (8)
AERNEMEREZENTETE  Tax effect of other temporary

differences not recognised 34 34

NEFEEEFETE Under-provision in respect of prior years 857 =

BEHFESH Actual tax expense (15,218) 11,213
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7 EEES 7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
RIEEBCR FHER ) 383N IEFCA 7] Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
(HBRESHZZER) HROI)E 225 HAE the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
EWeT Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

e 2 VARRAR % RIRGHE
ExHe WEDIE BBTEA  EmE A K
Salaries
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme
fee in kind bonus payments contributions
(BF=E())
(Note (i)
T
$'000
HITES Executive Directors
ERBEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,541 374 - - 7,085
EIEREE Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis 150 1,608 374 534 18 2,684
/e Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 2,263 187 147 18 2,765
Z2RYME Ms Peggy Lee 150 2,234 187 150 18 2,739
FHTES Non-executive Director

BRAEM LA Mr Chan Chee Shing

G0 (note (ii)) 75 645 - - _ 720
B IEHIT Independent Non-
BEx executive Directors
REBELE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - - - 180
BREFRE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
JEEE L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - - - 170
BERzEE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 - - - _ 170
FIELE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - - 240
1,645 13,291 1,122 831 54 16,943

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 5
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7 EEMe 2

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

=8

Directors'

fee

allowances
and benefits
in kind

VAR 75
E:2id: o)

RIRFTE

xR

Retirement
Share-based
payments

(HFEE®)

Discretionary scheme

bonus contributions

(e} =X0))
T Fr T
$'000 $'000 $'000
BITES Executive Directors
EHRBEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,520 973 - - 7,663
BIEASLE Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis 150 973 374 44 18 1,559
EETME Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 2,194 374 37 18 2,773
FBE/MA Ms Peggy Lee 150 2,019 374 29 18 2,590
BRERK K& Mr Chan Chee Shing
(GEID) (note (i) 150 2,724 1,123 66 2 4,065
BIFHT Independent Non-
= executive Directors
REBREE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 = - - - 180
BREEF LA Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 = = - - 190
ZIpEEL Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 = = - - 170
BRR%E Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 = - - _ 170
FRELE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 = - _ _ 240
1,720 14,430 3,218 176 56 19,600
MAEE(G) © PARRMD RAERE ) TR IBERIBA QAR Note (i): Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options

A 3 G -

BT AETESRRENGER B
L0 % [ 4 0 1 (LR HR PR P 5 1(q) i) PR3 B
AEE AN REROZNRHNETR
Rt E - URBZIARE  £3HDSH
BRI HOL PR TS T AREIRE
FRERFTNERHBELORE -

ERELEMNENFE  BEMRTE
BN ZIEHNEE N EFERS
BR8] —ERANTE 20

REREENR -_Z_ZTFOA—BHAR
BMTESHERIFNTES - REKE
EE-ZE_ZE+ A BRBEARAFE
WITES -

Note (ii):

granted to the Directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as
set out in note 1(qg)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note 20.

Mr Chan Chee Shing was re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2020. Mr Chan
Chee Shing had resigned as a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 October 2020.
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8 mEEi& AL 8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
ERMEEEMALTH  Ou(ZF= Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four
TE:N) BEE EEOMESEBEE individuals (2020: four individuals) are directors whose
RHIE7 - BB —(ZTZTF : —{1) emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
ANTHE S 25EmT ¢ emoluments in respect of the other one individual (2020: one

individual) are as follows:

FekHEMMe Salaries and other emoluments 1,755 1,461
VARR 17 /5 2B 19 2 A< Share-based payments 08 48
RIRETBIHEK Retirement scheme contributions 18 18
1,871 1,527
—h (ZEZZTFE: ) HEEasALTH The emoluments of one individual (2020: one individual) with
MEEATEHER the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

—E-EE
2021 2020
N A

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

1,500,001 7c-2,000,000 7T $1,500,001-$2,000,000 1 1

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 7
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9 BERET
(a) FREAREF|
BRARAFRIERBAFEHAQRL
38 A% 5 A% 3R P 1 4 F1) 153,617,000 7T
—ZT T4 :60,867,0007C) * LAKRE
BT 3 IR A p0 R -5 £0129,533,000
A% (— 2 = F 4 :129,431,000/%) 5t &

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $153,617,000 (2020: $60,867,000) and the

weighted average number of ordinary shares of
129,533,000 shares (2020: 129,431,000 shares) in issue

T during the year, calculated as follows:
38 A% H A E 19 B Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
—EEF
2021 2020
& E &R
Number of Number of
shares shares
& TR
‘000 ‘000
O A—BHHBERITT B Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 129,533 128,650
T EREN TR Effect of share options exercised - 781
R=ZA=+—HBMTEERRINE Weighted average number of
EH g ordinary shares at 31 March 129,533 129,431
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

9 BEREM(#) 9 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) SR HERF| (b) Diluted earnings per share
SRRESE R RN T TE R E The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
% AR 5 E (k4 1) 153,617,0007T (=& the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
— =4 :60,867,0007T) ' JA KBt E i@ the Company of $153,617,000 (2020: $60,867,000) and
% &9 04 39 20129,533,000 % (== the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
—Z4F :129,605,000%) sHE AT ¢ 129,533,000 shares (2020: 129,605,000 shares), calculated
as follows:
TR NS S (EE) - Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):
B —F —ETF
2021 2020
R E 17 1 B
Number of Number of
shares shares
FhR T A&
‘000 ‘000
Rt EBRERE T L @R Weighted average number of ordinary shares
i used in calculating basic earnings per share 129,533 129,431
WR ARIR A A R B REAR T &) Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
TEHERBFITL AT E under the Company’s share option scheme
for nil consideration - 174
RESTE G REE R mk Weighted average number of ordinary shares
i used in calculating diluted earnings per
share 129,533 129,605

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 9
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108 ETME - - HthhE RS 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RERLH PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(a) (a)
MELH ERIES
Gilfet:2)] HETRE Hi & NGt REMZ
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets Sub-total properties
T T T T Fr
$'000 $'000
BAGGE Cost or valuation:
RZF-NEFNA—H At 1 April 2019 98,697 342,173 706,812 1,147,682 44,150 1,191,832
B 5 3% Exchange adjustments (423) (1,590) (1,926) (3,939) = (3,939)
EE Additions - 59,811 83,760 143,571 - 143,571
HE Disposals - (14,338) (34,158) (48,496) - (48,496)
ENDREFERE Reclassification to right-of-use
E assets = (16,380) = (16,380) - (16,380)
EX Loss on revaluation
(BrzE10(b)) (note 10(b)) = = - - (5,750) (5,750)
RZE-FTF=A=+—H At31 March 2020 98,274 369,676 754,488 1,222,438 38,400 1,260,838
Rk Representing:
5% Cost 98,274 369,676 754,488 1,222,438 - 1222438
HE——Z_ZF Valuation-2020 - - - - 38,400 38,400
98,274 369,676 754,488 1,222,438 38,400 1,260,838
ST EARE - Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZF-NFHA—H At 1 April 2019 54,417 228,882 412,630 695,929 - 695,929
[ERAE Exchange adjustments (407) (1,125) (1,067) (2,599) - (2,599)
EEWE Charge for the year 2,256 42,449 59,210 103,915 - 103,915
MEEE (FEE10(d) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 689 3,655 3,99 8,340 = 8,340
HERER Written back on disposal - (12,751) (29,208) (41,959) - (41,959)
BN EEERE Reclassification to right-of-use
BiE assets = (15,899) = (15,899) = (15,899)
RZE-_ZFF=A=+—H At31 March 2020 56,955 245,211 445,561 747,727 - 747,727
HRERE Net book value:

RZZZTF=F=F—H At31 March2020 41,319 124,465 308,927 474,711 38,400 513,111
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10 ETME - HthhE RSZMEHH 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RESLTH 2) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(a) (&) (a) (continued)
MESEy  HRIE  HthEE N RENME
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets Sub-total properties
T T T Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BASMGE Cost or valuation:
R-Z-_TEMAE—H At 1 April 2020 98,274 369,676 754,488 1,222,438 38,400 1,260,838
fERRE Exchange adjustments 521 2,219 2,659 5,399 - 5,399
®E Additions - 33,888 59,569 93,457 - 93,457
HE Disposals - (36,480) (53,411) (89,891) - (89,891)
ENDEEFERE Reclassification to right-of-use
EE assets - (420) - (420) - (420)
EftEE Loss on revaluation
(FEE10(0)) (note 10(b)) - - - - (8,570) (8,570)
RZE-—F=A=+—H At31March 2021 98,795 368,883 763,305 1,230,983 29,830 1,260,813
K& Representing:
[EN Cost 98,795 368,883 763,305 1,230,983 - 1,230,983
HE——T-—F Valuation-2021 - - - - 29,830 29,830
98,795 368,883 763,305 1,230,983 29,830 1,260,813
ST EARE | Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZZE-ZFRA—H At 1 April 2020 56,955 245,211 445,561 747,727 - 747,727
fERAE Exchange adjustments 502 1,592 1,354 3,448 - 3,448
EEWE Charge for the year 2,227 41,388 57,250 100,865 - 100,865
MEEE (FEE10(d) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 1,151 8,606 24,553 34,310 - 34,310
&R Written back on disposal - (36,360) (43,453) (79,813) - (79,813)
ENNREERE Redlassification to right-of-use
B assets - (420) - (420) - (420)
RZE-—F=A=+—H At31March 2021 60,835 260,017 485,265 806,117 - 806,117
HRERE Net book value:
RZZ-—%F=A=+—H At31March2021 37,960 108,866 278,040 424,366 29,830 454,696

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 2 1
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108 ETME - - HthhE RS 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

REE LM &) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(a) (&) (a) (continued)
AEBEYER AR HENDTWOT ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the

Group is as follows:

HETHAMEEY (RRAE) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost

EEENFHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 71,090 71,090

ERBEINNREHEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,705 27,184
98,795 98,274

REWZE (REHE) Investment properties, at valuation

ERBEINFEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 29,830 38,400
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108TDE  HthE - BBMEBHFE  10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
REELH =) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(D) MEN A RBEE
(i) AREEER

(b) Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

AEERNBFEHRREEREEFE
BREMENDAEE - ZFVED
BACEBUHHREEN)FH 135 —
(AR EEEIFREN=ARAR
BEESR AKE2RUATHET
ARG A BN BRIZEM
EEN KEMETAABESER
BEFfEREBREMR :

- FERMBE: REAE—E
BB AE(BHREEXRER
FERHEREM SN REH
BRE) KFEQAEE-

- FEMMGE: - ERE-_EBR
BAERVREF - ERNHAE
KRBANE) UREEATAH
REABXRAEIABE T
AT S A B8 R RTS8
EEBAE

- BSERME: RAEATH
BRB AEIEAR FEE -

FIEREYMEECN T - —FN=
T_TFZA=+—RETEMR-
EHTERBASMERT—F
PELETEBERARARET
ZAERMITHNE THARIEESE
1% HETEMIEE Y ER T B
MBEREERBNLCR - NEBE
EEC RS/ RERS BRE
ITHEMBRERMER -

R —FM-_T-_TF=A=
+—8 AEBFAREDEHIN
M EBE=Z A BERBHE -

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis are categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2021 and 2020 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who has staff with recognised
professional qualifications and relevant experience in
the location and category of investment properties
being revalued. The Group’s management has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, all of the Group's

investment properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as described above.

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10\ BYE - Ktk - BRI E
RERLM 5

(b) XM D A EEFTE (&)

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

1) 5 Hh Ak fhER NEEENBAE
Location of properties Valuation techniques Unobservable input
B A - EEYE =R oAV Y E B TSR EY (19)% Z (7)%
(Fr:8), i (B (ZZZZF 0% £ 15%)
Mainland China — Direct comparison (Discount)/premium on (19)% to (7)%
Commercial properties approach quality of the buildings (2020: 0% to 15%)

NRFBERBNRENENRAE
B ~RERERLEEEE  EF
E2EALMENTE  Lik2E
RHNETEENFRIELAE -
REVMEZARREE R ER
BHAAEEERE -

I L 7 4 B B 038 MR 4
BB BT

The fair values of investment properties located in
Mainland China are determined by using direct
comparison approach with reference to the market
price of comparable properties and adjusted for
building quality and timing of the reference
transactions. Higher premium for investment properties
will result in a higher fair value measurement.

The movement of these investment properties in
Mainland China during the year is as follows:

T
$'000

R=ZZE—hFWMA—H At 1 April 2019 44,150
HEEIE Valuation losses (5,750)
R-—ZE-_ZTF=A=+—H At 31 March 2020 38,400
RZZE-_ZTFMA—AH At 1 April 2020 38,400
H{EEE Valuation losses (8,570)
R-ZB-_—F=A=+—H At 31 March 2021 29,830

() EpEEBREEM  &RE - LRE T
B BRESRVIABENTIXEA
Kz

(c) Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial
purchases of cutlery and utensils.
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108 TME - HfthR - BRI
REgLH (2

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

dEARFER AEEERERTEA (d)During the year, the Group’s management identified

EE(ARBETHENRSELET)
EERE WHETZEEEAEER
EE DA Re EL A 4 35 - 33 AN 3% 48 0 AT IR
CIgEE - REGE  FRELFEARE
EUAREMYE  HEMBENRR
& %85 R 2 REES9,377,000 L (Z & —
T4 : 17,498,0007T ) & 34,310,000 7T
— T T :8,340,0007T)  R{EA
BEFE —+=EEBENTKREE
&% 425,578,000 (2T F : +
=HEBNS 5 58,724,0007T) ° Btk
2O ARTEREFERAEEEARE
b - ML 2SR R A A) UK [ & FE 1Y
TREBE - (ZE-ZTF: B TERERE
RREEENREMYE - #EFR
R AT YR [B] & FE T R 38 ) o AIUR B 58
REFTEERERAREENREMAY
¥ HMESARHENEREE  FRARA
WIHRIS%(ZE-BF : 16%)EF -

At REARREAEEENUR
H b2 HESARER R EE B
o B A59,377,000t ( ZFE —F & :
17,498,0007T ) #134,310,0007c( = &
T4 : 8,340,0007T) °

e)yR=—ZTE=-_—F=H=+—8" EANR

EEFLOWB AR MERITERNY
HEEFMEA1,021,000 0 (ZE=-F
£ :1,122,0007T) ©

certain individual restaurants, a cash generating unit for
impairment assessment purpose, which under-performed
and estimated the recoverable amounts of the right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment of these
restaurants. Based on these estimates, the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment was written down by $59,377,000 (2020:
$17,498,000) and $34,310,000 (2020: $8,340,000)
respectively during the year. The aggregate recoverable
amounts of twenty-three of these restaurants amounted to
$25,578,000 based on their value in use net of relevant
lease liabilities (2020: thirteen of these restaurants
amounted to $8,724,000). Apart from the above, the
recoverable amounts of the remaining impaired right-of-
use assets and other property, plant and equipment were
minimal (2020: the recoverable amounts of the remaining
impaired right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment were minimal). The estimates of recoverable
amount were based on the value in use of these right-of-
use assets and other property, plant and equipment,
determined using a pre-tax discount rate of 15% (2020:
16%).

As a result, impairment losses of right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment of $59,377,000 (2020:
$17,498,000) and $34,310,000 (2020: $8,340,000) were
recognised during the year.

(e) At 31 March 2021, the net book value of properties

pledged as security for banking guarantees granted to
certain subsidiaries of the Group amounted to $1,021,000
(2020: $1,122,000).
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10\ BYE - Ktk - BRI E
RERLM 5

(f) ARBULEHER LR ENE - Bk
HENFRP—FE+F - FALEH
EHTEESARE - AEERETA
FHEOKEHEERREBERNORER
EfRERERmT

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(f) The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases initially run for one to ten
years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The
Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

—&FR Within one year 4,301 5,785
—FREREN After one year but within two years 4,639 4,170
MERBE=FRA After two years but within three years 4,253 4,639
ZFREMER After three years but within four years - 4,253

13,193 18,847
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1MERESE 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
PAFTE A
ARE)  DITERAR  DITERAR
F{EE A/ ARRH) ABRH]
HELTH HESHH  #E - =W
BEREER HAb 45 B
Ownership
interests in Other Plant,
leasehold land properties machinery and
held for own leased for own equipment,
use, carried at  use, carried at carried at
depreciated depreciated depreciated
cost cost cost
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
B Cost:
RZZFE-NFEA—H At 1 April 2019 8,098 1,181,667 5,056 1,194,821
i H AR Exchange adjustments - (3,889) (27) (3,916)
Ry - Haz Reclassification from other property,

RBEH D plant and equipment - 481 - 481
E Additions - 722,308 4,405 726,713
HEBE Lease modifications = (19,770) (67) (19,837)
HE Disposals - (17,650) (29) (17,679)
R-ZE-_TF=A=+—H At 31 March 2020 8,098 1,863,147 9,338 1,880,583
REHTERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment:

RZZ-NFMA—R At 1 April 2019 2,118 - - 2,118
FERE Charge for the year 209 426,869 3,169 430,247

R EEE (M 10(d) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 288 17,037 173 17,498
HE R # O Written back on disposal - (2,886) (5) (2,891)
RZZE-ZF=A=1+—H At31March 2020 2,615 441,020 3,337 446,972

HRMEFE Net book value:

RZZE-ZTF=A=1+—H At31March 2020 5,483 1,422,127 6,001 1,433,611

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 27
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NMNERERE &) 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
PAFTE AR
ARE)  DMTERAR DB
FiEE A/ ARRH) ABRH]
HELTH HESHH  #E - =W
HEEER HAb 45 GBS
Ownership
interests in Other Plant,
leasehold land properties machinery and
held for own leased for own equipment,
use, carried at  use, carried at carried at
depreciated depreciated depreciated
cost cost cost
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
B Cost:
RZE-_ZTFMA—H At 1 April 2020 8,098 1,863,147 9,338 1,880,583
[& 5 S Exchange adjustments - 4,949 35 4,984
HE Additions - 65,189 3,360 68,549
HEEBE Lease modifications - 113,040 1,046 114,086
HeE Disposals - (38,453) (382) (38,835)
RZTZ—F=RA=+—H  At31March 2021 8,098 2,007,872 13,397 2,029,367
EFENRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZZFZTFHA—H At 1 April 2020 2,615 441,020 3,337 446,972
BEE 3 88 Exchange adjustments - 1,258 14 1,272
FENE Charge for the year 197 439,246 3,791 443,234
AR E (FFFE10(d)) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 482 58,633 262 59,377
HEREE Written back on disposal - (31,715) (382) (32,097)
WRZZE-—F=HA=+—H  At31March 2021 3,294 908,442 7,022 918,758
BRIE A Net book value:
R=—ZE-—F=A=+—H At 31 March 2021 4,804 1,099,430 6,375 1,110,609
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MERERE2)

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

REBEE D EYHFERREEENEEFAE The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by

DT

class of underlying asset is as follows:

LT ERAABEHISVE  Ownership interests in leasehold land held for

BAMEE L hiERE own use, carried at depreciated cost

s 4,804 5,483
LATE R AN ABERIFB/E  Other properties leased for own use,

BHRAMEMYE carried at depreciated cost (i) 1,099,430 1,422,127
PAYTER A ABRAIH#ES «  Plant, machinery and equipment,

WA A carried at depreciated cost (i) 6,375 6,001

1,110,609 1,433,611

AT ER AR AR EE  Ownership interests in leasehold land and

AR EENHES buildings held for own use, carried at

MR - FISRTEEHA  depreciated cost, with remaining lease term

10 & 504 (MizE10) between 10 and 50 years (note 10) 37,960 41,319

URAREBARNHEHERE
VR GEAEES R

Ownership interests in leasehold investment
property, carried at fair value, with remaining

THEEAI10E504F lease term between 10 and 50 years
(fHzE10) (note 10) 29,830 38,400
67,790 79,719
1,178,399 1,513,330

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NMERERE @)
BERNERNAERROILER S
W :

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

REREEDBNEREEENE
M :
FIEEAMEE LR R

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land

held for own use 197 209
HEEANEMYZE Other properties leased for own use 439,246 426,869
MBS - SRR AE Plant, machinery and equipment 3,791 3,169
443,234 430,247
AT ER AN ABERNBIEERM tH  Ownership interests in leasehold land and
MEEYHEEEER  FREE buildings held for own use, carried at
HA 102504 (3£ 10) depreciated cost, with remaining lease
term between 10 and 50 years (note 10) 2,227 2,256
445,461 432,503
HEaFEMNEER (FFEs@a) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 36,824 37,995
B HTRENE MM ESMEER - Expense relating to short-term leases and
FIREERRE_Z_ZF other leases with remaining lease term
=A=+t—BsZaiKit ending on or before 31 March 2020 4,225 78,065
THATREBEN T EEENKE  Varable lease payments not included
in the measurement of lease liabilities 3,430 7,992

N 4F JE {5 AR B EE 38 N 68,549,000 7T (=
T T :726,713,0007T) c XS RTE
HREFHERZENNERCBEMNK
@ -

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
$68,549,000 (2020: $726,713,000). This amount primarily
related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.
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MEREEE &) 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
ERSALBBENHE.BENHRIN Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
M B0 BIERHIFE16(c) &2 18 ° analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 16(c) and 18

respectively.
(i) FHIEEE AMEMmYZE (i) Other properties leased for own use

AGEDBBHERZESEREM
MEERZTEERBFENER -5
LAE-—RONFIRB=ELFIAHE

BE-_ZE-_—=A=+—B 1%
B AEBHEETZREE H4 8
BENEEEEMKANEE /&K
FEBEN KGR A B E R RIE
Mo HBEHERBIZWARI10%E20%
(ZZE-FF :10%E20%) mRER
HEMBBRET - BEMRIERS

AEBEHDHABLHAEME - N=F
——F=ZA=+—HB  RETAURK
Mo BHELEHE—FAR—F%RE
AFARA]KREE&IED BRIBARHE
2 Bl 52,274,0000( — & — T 4F
1,789,000 ) }2,904,0007c( =& —
TFE:TgL) e

(i) R E

AEEMFEHES  SHMEARBEHEER
H—F2 F- - MorHEAEERHE
IHRRES  BERAEKRHTE
FEE

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties
as its retail stores and office through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of three to five
years with renewal options.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group leased a
number of restaurants which contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on revenue generated from
the restaurants and minimum annual lease payment terms
that are fixed. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2020: 10% to 20%)
of the revenue over the base rents. These payment terms
are common in restaurants in Hong Kong where the Group
operates.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
At 31 March 2021, the total future minimum sublease
payments expected to be received under non-cancellable
subleases within one year and after one year but within
five years were $2,274,000 (2020: $1,789,000) and
$2,904,000 (2020: $nil) respectively.

(ii) Other leases

The Group leases plant, machinery and equipment under
leases expiring from one to six years. Some leases include
an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated.

RPGEEBEBRADE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 3 1
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1288 12 GOODWILL

RAREA—BER=A=+—8) Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001
BEEEWHEESEYE THRE IR Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill
AEBRSEMRMEB DB EHET Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
AIYRIMESERET((BEELET]) ("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and
U business segment as follows:

BEEK — PR Restaurants — Mainland China 1,001 1,001
BeEHETHAIKECELBRIEFERE The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
B8 -t E AR EEEBEZ AN T value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
FUBBENRSREMET o projections based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period.

HEECABENEERR Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

ER= Gross margin 12% 9%

ERX Growth rate 5% 2%

IR =& Discount rate 15% 16%
ERERBABNEG TS EREEESR Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on
ENE - IERAITIREAZ REAEMIR past performance and their expectation for market
SELBITEERBROTATITERE o development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect

specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.
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PBEMERMEE

13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

FRBHMEMEE Non-current other financial assets
B K AT ENESES Debt securities at amortised cost
-3 EMEBRE — Unlisted but quoted - 15,821
HREBHEHMERMEE Current other financial assets
RN ENERES Debt securities at amortised cost
-JELEMEBRE — Unlisted but quoted 16,745 3,141

16,745 18,962

R-ZFB_FTF=ZA=T—HBHFRBER
EFEQBHERE-REREBEITHN
%ﬁ:ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁﬂxﬁé REME23%5t
CHHMAR-T_—FLtAtT=H: X
()EE%-E/% RERMEBEITHUAARE
FHEMFHIRE  BENELI5%ETE 0 5
HER—F—_—%+—A=1+H-

RZEBE-_—F=ZA=+—HBHRHE
HFHEQHBERE-—REBMBBEITHNUE
TAHERNFERE  IRFEFNE23%ETE
INBHAR-_T_—FtA+TZH: UAKk(D)
HEE - RXEREBETOUARENE
WP EIRE  IRFEFE45%EE - FIEA
RIB_—F+—H=Z+H-

R-CZE_ZF=ZA=+—"BHRBELE
Fig(@ETEAL —REREBEITA
EXFHENTHRE  RENE28%:
B AMBEA—FT_FTFt+A-TH-

The non-current debt securities as at 31 March 2020
represented medium term notes (a) issued by a financial
institution in Luxembourg, denominated in United States
dollars, bore interest at a rate of 2.3% per annum with
maturity date on 12 July 2021; and (b) issued by a financial
institution in Hong Kong, denominated in Renminbi, bore
interest at a rate of 4.5% per annum with maturity date on 20
November 2021.

The current debt securities as at 31 March 2021 represented
medium term notes (a) issued by a financial institution in
Luxembourg, denominated in United States dollars, bear
interest at rate of 2.3% per annum with the maturity on 12
July 2021; and (b) issued by a financial institution in Hong
Kong, denominated in Renminbi, bear interest at a rate of 4.5%
per annum with the maturity on 20 November 2021.

The current debt securities as at 31 March 2020 represented
medium term notes issued by a financial institution in
Mainland China, denominated in United States dollars, bore
interest at a rate of 2.8% per annum with maturity date on 20
October 2020.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1MEFER 14 INVENTORIES

Q) FEHMBRRKRIAIANEZE R : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

B &R Food and beverages 40,156 44,604
HFER - BEME R Consumables, packaging materials and
H b zE1E other sundry items 5,852 6,224
46,008 50,828
b)ERAEZENEEEIEIFUT - (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense is as follows:

EETFENRESE Carrying amount of inventories sold 657,131 724,258
TFEMB Write-down of inventories 412 421
657,543 724,679

15 FE Yie i 3k #0 Lt P e 3% 15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEUWBR ZX (FIRR BB 2E4E) Trade debtors, net of loss allowance 6,064 4,261
H R UK Other debtors 22,111 19,367
ENASMAREERS Rental and utility deposits paid 50,770 50,085
FERFRE R Lease receivables 2,239 =
FE Prepayments 18,580 16,468
99,764 90,181

& T A& 206,112,000 ( = T = T F: All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart

7,013,00070) A S EIZEN  KEE from certain utility deposits totalling $6,112,000 (2020:

FTE EURBRTR ~ IZ & MBI TIBEH AT — $7,013,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as an

FARKE S BERF/IH - expense within one year.
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15 PR AR FR FI R ft PR MG % (2)
BRER AT

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Ageing analysis

RS BATR - 5172 8 U5 AR SRORN E 4th & UK As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
THREKERR (BIHGERER) LEER trade debtors (which are included in trade and other

HIFt BB DM T -

receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

=ZE=[E 1 to 30 days 4,693 3,482
=t—Eh+A 31 to 90 days 1,254 528
h+—=2—8NA+H 91 to 180 days 56 251
—BANt+—E=\,THAH 181 to 365 days 61 =
6,064 4,261
AEBHEERETHHERSTENRS The Group's sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis. The
HE o  REENATRERESNEIER Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 75 days to certain

NF=tHELTHAHENEEHR-

16 RITHERREENBASEFR/Y

@ BRTERRRENREEEY
B

customers to which the Group provides catering services.

16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

(a) Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
comprise:

RITER Deposits with banks 375,641 442,358
RITERNRS Cash at bank and in hand 239,991 68,689

GREBRESRMERMTHIRSAM Cash and cash equivalents in the
REZEEY consolidated cash flow statement 615,632 511,047
fBiE = & A B ER1TF R Bank deposits over three months 6,511 =
622,143 511,047

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16 BITESRESNMBALSLEE/MZ) 16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b)) REMETZENAEHER (b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:
TERARBAEEREZYNEEE The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
S BIREESRIERSEH - kA from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
B EHNEEEESREH AR changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
eRmERAEEGAHERERSH liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
ARERETFHRERTENARG - will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow

statement as cash flows from financing activities.

RITERK HEAE
Bank loan Lease liabilities

(BzE18)

(Note 18)
Tt
$'000

R=F-NAFHMA—H At 1 April 2019 143 1,167,282 1,167,425

REMEZTHNELRE  Changes from financing cash

BE flows:
EEIRTTER Repayment of bank loan (143) - (143)
ERNEERENERILD Capital element of lease rentals paid - (380,792) (380,792)
ENMAERSHF SIS Interest element of lease rentals paid - (37,995) (37,995)
REAREEFHNIREME  Total changes from financing cash

HE)EEE flows (143) (418,787) (418,930)
AR Exchange adjustments - (3,893) (3,893)
Hin# s : Other changes:
HEBEFNEER Interest expense on lease liabilities

(Bi=E5(@)) (note 5(a)) - 37,995 37,995
FRREFEFTFHALE Increase in lease liabilities from

HEAEEM entering into new leases during

the year - 693,936 693,936

HELE Lease disposals - (15,170) (15,170)
Hith & Eh1asa Total other changes = 716,761 716,761
RZZE-ZHF=H=+—H At31March 2020 - 1,461,363 1,461,363
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16 BITERERESNRSEFR/M &)

(b) REBMEFHNEEHK : (&)

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

activities: (continued)

16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

IRITER HEBE
Bank loan Lease liabilities
(H3£18)
(Note 18)
T
$'000
R-B-—S&EmMA—AH At 1 April 2020 1,461,363 1,461,363
REMEZTHNELHRE  Changes from financing
- cash flows:
ENHEERESHEARES  Capital element of lease rentals paid - (424,974) (424,974)
ENEERSHMNEES  Interest element of lease rentals paid - (36,824) (36,824)
KEAREETHNBESRE Total changes from financing
B E)EEE cash flows - (461,798) (461,798)
BN Exchange adjustments - 3,961 3,961
Hith &5 Other changes:
HEBEBENEER Interest expense on lease liabilities
(P =E5()) (note 5(a)) - 36,824 36,824
FRREEENEAA Increase in lease liabilities from
HEAEEM entering into new leases during
the year - 69,028 69,028
HAEBIE Lease modifications - 109,411 109,411
HELE Lease disposals - (247) (247)
Hith #3458 Total other changes - 215,016 215,016
R-—B-——#=H=+—H At31March 2021 1,218,542 1,218,542

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16 EBTEFRAESNMREEEY &) 16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(c) HERES AL A% (c) Total cash outflows for leases
BERNGEAEESRERNTEES S Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement
B for leases comprise the following:

KRB MA Within operating cash flows 7,655 86,057
MERSRA Within financing cash flows 461,798 418,787
469,453 504,844

17 FE £ AR = F0 3L fth PR 5 3% 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

FENERAESER Creditors and accrued expenses 326,634 386,957
BHBEE Contract liabilities 10,587 9,354
e SRR WA Other payables and deferred income 22,353 20,992
Bl SRe Rental deposits received 204 1,142
359,778 418,445
T HTHEAMENRIMELZWRASG All of the trade and other payables, apart from certain other
9,096,000 ( =& —F 4 : 7,479,000 7T ) payables and deferred income totalling $9,096,000 (2020:
SN BT FEAS BR RN E fib FE A SR TR ER S $7,479,000), are expected to be settled or recognised as
—FRNEBHERERA  HBAR—FR income or are repayable within one year.

fEI& -
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17 BfRRMEMEBAR 2 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
FEAS BR SR H b FE S SR 15 3% 85 = B HAGT Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
B EMNERR - MARKRSEHROERRD on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of
T the end of the reporting period:

=== 1 to 30 days 106,975 105,028
=t—=A+AH 31 to 90 days 68 2,828
h+—Z=—BN\+H 91 to 180 days 528 576
—BNt+—ZE=F/,THAH 181 to 365 days 62 293
—F LA E Over one year 196 189
107,829 108,914
HE AN EHBESEEATENZAE Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
NFAEREF AT contract liabilities recognised are as followings:
AREB T THHERPREEREERS The Group occasionally receives consideration when the
U ECE (B - R ATEBE TP R KK customers purchase coupons from the restaurants at the time
HEMEEEL B TERSNEEREAL of purchase. The respective revenue is expected to be
HARFHERR © recognised when the coupons are redeemed for future sales

by customers from restaurants or when the coupons expire.
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17EBFRRMEMESR 2) 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
SHEBHNEE Movements in contract liabilities

RO A —BrAER Balance at 1 April 9,354 3,061
AERNERTAETNELHBENY A Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
MIERK K& K B FER recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (9,354) (3,061)
A 4F A e R TR LR A R A T 3 A Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
AHBEERD recognising revenue for advance received
during the year (18,876) (5,166)
AFANETEEEMEKXNASAAE  Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
Ehn issuance of coupons during the year 29,463 14,520
R=ZA=+—HrN&ER Balance at 31 March 10,587 9,354
FMEEHBEETR—FAEERERE All of the contract liabilities are expected to be settled or
WA o recognised as income within one year.
18sHBAR 18 LEASE LIABILITIES
TR TAEEHRHEEENFGHRELD The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
HARR - of the Group’s lease liabilities:

—F R Within one year 433,320 479,851
—FREMFEAN After one year but within two years 324,359 379,560
MFRERFR After two years but within five years 416,554 545,879
hEE After five years 44,309 56,073

785,222 981,512

1,218,542 1,461,363
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19 BBFEF 19 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

REBERESCRHNERESETEEA)D
RRE - BRRBEEBUERGH)RES
EAMNES @ fuaslt Eesrsl (58
HBeirdl]) - 8B —EREHK
EBRETE ABEUMXZTATE - RiE®
Beid EEMEESARRBEE R
ABHS% MR ESTEEEER: BF
A& fEE AR LR A3000L(ZE=F
£ :30,0007T) ° R AR ARE S FT
&l o

AEBESEANIMBEEANEEREE
WEENERE BE i E 8 R EHFORIK
AHEIRREE

RZZF——FNALH  NARERAKBER
Rt &l ([FERgstall) -

REBREEIET  ESERERNEEG
EAAREEKENEREES EF(E2FE
FUTEZRBIUFATES) XSRA
B EMEBEERARRZERE - A
RBARA D - HEBITFERTI=
HRMRSE  ORBRERTHHER
EBRZ e A RERMBOBRDKHIE :
(MEZBREXTEANABEXAE
BT E A RER P RA D F R E
KO EE - BREFSBEEINEREY
BREENTETAN - BROE 8 &
ARERETENMERBNKEBRR -
EABREBEDBERERBALR1RE
R o

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of $30,000 (2020: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

On 7 September 2011, the Company adopted an option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, Directors were authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any employee, Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) or officer of any member of the Group or any related
trust or company to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the share option scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.
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0URESRAMLUKRMNEERNES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Q@ UTREEZREERE TEBRENIERR (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
FUEHE - FREERENEBEER during the year are as follows, whereby all options
TR EE - are settled by physical delivery of shares:

BT

T B A RS E = & #EARR

Average

Number of contractual life

Date granted options  Vesting conditions of options

BTEZOERE

Options granted to Directors:

- ZE—hFWMA=+H 920,000 AR=ZFE—REMNA—HE=ZZ=-= 705

=A=+—BHERS A#ITE
— 20 April 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022

-—Z-hF+A=H 33000 ARZF-ARF+A-BE-_T-_— 7.0%
NAZ=+BERAS A#LITE
— 2 October 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 October 2016 to 30 September 2022

-—E-N\FOA=+H 40,000 ARZE-AFONA-—BHE-Z_RF 7.04F
=A=+—BHHEAS A#ITE
—20 April 2018 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2025

_—E-BFELAAH 40,000 FAR-B-—FMA-BE-T_+F 6.7
= A=T—BHHEAS BIITE
-6 July 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.7 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

-—Z-ZF\A+H 1,600,000 FAIR-—ZE-_—FWAB—HEZT_+F 6.6
ZRA=+—B8BEAS A#ITE
— 10 August 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.6 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027
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0RESRAMLUKRMNEERNES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)

(@) UTRERFER TEBRENERRK (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
Mg IEBRESEBREER during the year are as follows, whereby all options
RO EE (&) are settled by physical delivery of shares: (continued)

ERETH

BREE 5 A KIEARR

Average

Number of contractual life

Date granted options  Vesting conditions of options

BT IR B R B

Options granted to employees:

-—E-HFWA-TH 1,395500 AIR-ZE—RFOA—HE-T__—F 7.0%F

= A=T—HEERS A#ITE
—20 April 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022

- - \FHA=+H 1,010,000 AIR-ZT-—NFOA—-—BE-ZT_HF 7.06
=ZR=+—BHAARS AftITE
—20 April 2018 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2025

-—E-NF+=HA+/\H 30,000 AIR-ZE-—NF+A-—BE_ZT_RHF 6.84F
NA=+HEERS A#LITE
— 18 December 2018 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.8 years

from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2025

-—Z=_FTF+ HNH 1,000,000 FAIRZ=ZB-—FWHB—HE-T_+F 6.74F
=A=+—BERAS T#ITE
— 6 July 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.7 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

- —E-_FFENATH 720,000 AR ZT-_—FNMA—HE-_ZT_LF 6.64F
ZA=+—BHEAD ARITE
— 10 August 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.6 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

-ZEB-EFE+-A=+H 300,000 FAIRZE-_—F+-_A-—HE_Z_+F 6.94F
T—A=THEEBEAS BRITE
— 30 December 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.9 years

from 1 December 2021 to 30 November 2027
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0URESRAMLUKRMNEERNES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)
(b) BRENEE FMNEFHTEE (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
T of share options are as follows:
—E-THF
2020
I 15 hngE 19
TEE  REREHE TEE  BEREHE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise ~ Number of
price options price options
FEHRITE Outstanding at the beginning
of the year $23.66 3,428,000 $23.10 4,418,000
FABITE Exercised during the year - - $20.70 (883,000)
FNEEF Granted during the year $17.37 3,660,000 = =
FRBKRK Lapsed during the year $20.60 (762,000) $25.11 (107,000)
FRNEFH Cancelled during the year $30.14  (1,040,000) - -
FERRITHE Outstanding at the end
of the year $18.47 5,286,000 $23.66 3,428,000
FERAJITE Exercisable at the end of the year $20.76 1,664,000 $21.83 914,500
REEASTHEERERITEAD The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
MEFHBREAZS T(ZE_ZF: for shares options exercised during the year was $nil (2020:
26.967T) ° $26.96).
RN-ZTE-_—F=A=+—HAERTEE The options outstanding at 31 March 2021 had a weighted
iR INEFHITEEA1847L (= average exercise price of $18.47 (2020: $23.66) and a
T ZF4F :23.6670) M HNE FHF weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.47 years
BENHRBIATIF(ZE_ZF: (2020: 2.96 years).

2.964F) o
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0RESRAMLUKRNEERANES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)
() BRENAABENMERS (c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
MRTEREMESRENARE The fair value of services received in return for share
2B EEERENAAEBER options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
2 MEERA=ZBABEERELEL of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
hEt - BIRENS DB AEE EE the share options granted is measured based on a trinomial
AR ASgE —HAZBEADE lattice model. The contractual life of the share option is
SIRPITE AR TRR o used as an input into this model. Expectations of early

exercise are incorporated into the trinomial lattice model.

R-FB-FF R_F_FF R

TtARBERT NA+HEET +=-HA=+H
O i A e R TR ERE
Options Options Options

granted at granted at granted at
6 July 10 August 30 December

2020 2020 2020
BRENDAEERM Fair value of share options and
FrER assumptions
RETEEM AR EE Fair value at measurement date $1.79 $1.65 $1.71
BB Share price $17.90 $17.08 $17.76
1TEE Exercise price $17.90 $17.08 $17.76
TEERR 18 Expected volatility 20.29% 20.58% 20.82%

HRREEARR (A =18 Bh[EEAR  Option life (expressed as weighted
T A3 &9 o0 359 BRBR 51 7R ) average life used in the modelling

under trinomial lattice model) 6.7 years 6.6 years 6.9%F years
TEHRRR B M am Expected dividend yield 4.08% 4.27% 4.50%
2 [ g M) 2 Risk-free interest rate
(RBEBRNES BE (based on Hong Kong
FTHE) Government Bond Yield) 0.39% 0.24% 0.49%

HEREEEERE KGR T AEH Share options were granted under a service condition. The

ETE=EMESRERNETFTEHONRAAE condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
B WEEZEEREBEE - BTER fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
HE B A B A5 {R] BR TR IS A R A 161 o market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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21 R EMEBRARATHMRGR 21INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) ZRE BTG AR S 3R FT R Y A ERFR (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
HA financial position represents:

REEEBRNEHEE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year 79 16,754
BT ESFSH Provisional Profits Tax paid (17,692) (30,177)
(17,613) (13,423)
K& : Representing:
AT 3 A B A R Current tax recoverable (17,633) (13,423)
JES AN EARS TR Current tax payable 20 -
(17,613) (13,423)
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21 iREMBRARATHOMRER (2)

(b) EERELEREEENERE

BEEF A MR R ERNETEHRA
(BE)/BENERBIARBE-F
TFEM-_TE-TF=-RA=+—AHL
FREFHMT :

21INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

b anEl
FENFE
RHE

Depreciation

B AR
BEP T
R ARl

BREME
Bfh

allowances

Revaluation in excess Future

of related benefit of
depreciation
T

$'000

of investment
tax losses
T
$'000

properties
Tt
$'000

RETHBENELSE : Deferred tax arising from:
RZE—NFMHA—H At 1 April 2019 7,506 12,093 (44) 19,555
fefiraiBaERHF (5 AN),/  (Credited)/charged to the
53z (Hi7E6(@a)) consolidated statement of
profit or loss (note 6(a)) (2,609) (2,954) 22 (5,541)
MRZZ_ZTHF=HA=+—H At31 March 2020 4,897 9,139 (22) 14,014
RZE-ZZTFWA—H At 1 April 2020 4,897 9,139 (22) 14,014
EEEBRmAPETA Credited to the consolidated
(Mfzx6(a)) statement of profit or loss
(note 6(a)) (3,293) (11,980) (881) (16,154)
MZB-—F=A=+—H At31 March 2021 1,604 (2,841) (903) (2,140)

HELR B TR RERT Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
FIEFTBE EFE consolidated statement of financial
position (3,935) (22)
iR & ISR R IER A Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
RERIBEE S consolidated statement of financial
position 1,795 14,036
(2,140) 14,014

RREFEBERAT
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21 SMBERARATHMRBIRGE  21INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(o) RIERHIELERITEE : (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

ANEE B M R BE R ET R IEE 18 104,548,000
(= F = & 4 :79,495,0007C ) &
ETHEBERARANANRER=Z2E
4,597,0007T (=& — Z 4 : 4,390,000
L) EREENELEHIBEEE - AAR
SEEEERR BHE_T=_—F=
A=+—H EREBTAAIGEES
AR EERESAENAE@AEE
B R RFETE A o B T B A 3 B 8
N EIWFEIEE1867,398,000T (ZE =
T4 : 42,345,00070) AR B IR 1T H
kBB E QBT RFEE AN
BIERITH L - BERIBBBETRE

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the cumulative tax losses of $104,548,000 (2020:
$79,495,000) and deductible temporary differences of
$4,597,000 (2020: $4,390,000) of certain subsidiaries as
management of the Group considers that it is not probable
as at 31 March 2021 that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions. Other than tax losses of
subsidiaries in Mainland China of $67,398,000 (2020:
$42,345,000) which have an expiry period of five years
from the date of incurrence under existing PRC tax
legislation, these tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.

FARRER

22 ¥ 22 PROVISIONS

REARRTS & 2 Provision for long service payments 22,073 24,992
M EIGFTISIER AR Provision for reinstatement costs for
£ rented premises 66,227 68,103
88,300 93,095
B EAIREEE] Less: Amount included under
O €] “current liabilities” (18,784) (17,356)
69,516 75,739
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22 ¥l (&)
(a) REIRIS & %148

22 PROVISIONS (continued)
(a) Provision for long service payments

R A—H At 1 April 24,992 18,439
2 (EE) FHEREE Provision (reversed)/made (1,668) 8,308
=8 AR EE Provision utilised (1,251) (1,755)
R=ZA=+—~8 At 31 March 22,073 24,992

REFE(ERBIG)  AKEARE
TEATEAKRERE RV ELFH
BERBRAREXN—FFHA-E
NeBERIZFRENREFSEF
BfE - WEBMERBEANEERKE
FREMKEASEHTMELD - K
SEWER LM AEFE M ER M

(b) HE S P VIS B R A2 1R

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to employees who
have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlement accrued under the Group's retirement
schemes that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund
the above.

(b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented
premises

R A—H At 1 April 68,103 62,083
2T IR A RIS Additional provision made 1,833 6,241
=B AR EE Provision utilised (3,709) (221)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 66,227 68,103

AR 4 B2 5 3 BT 57 9 B 10 A A 1R K
& BN BRIE & 15 E W R R
YEERESH BERAAAKE
EE - Rt ARBECRERHELD
EERANRREMGEHEL T84

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant
rental agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best
estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be
incurred.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23 WG 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) A& BEFE AN SEAKIL DB (a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing
VEEB R EMYEE  HIRE2E balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
R RREEHE - equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 72.

(b) Bz £ (b) Dividends
() BREAFEEAARARERREN (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
BE Company attributable to the year

BEEIRMZH Interim dividend declared and paid of
H AR S F AR 30.01L 30.0 cents (2020: 23.0 cents)
(ZZE-Z4F 1 23.01) per share 38,860 29,793
RS REREEZ DK Final dividend proposed after the end of
REARR S &A% 60.01L the reporting period of 60.0 cents
(ZZE=Z4F : 50.01) (2020: 50.0 cents) per share 77,720 64,767
116,580 94,560
RmEHTEBESD IR AR The final dividend proposed after the end of the
BHAREmERARERAAE - reporting period has not been recognised as a liability

at the end of the reporting period.
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23FExMEEMN =)
(b) RE (&)
(i) BRE—UBEE  URKRFEERK
BEREAHENAD T SRR
3=

23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Dividends (continued)

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

B E—MBFEE -
WA AN EAZAE ] 32 f+F
RHEAAR B &A% 50.011L
(Z2=2F: 81.01l)

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid
during the year, of 50.0 cents
(2020: 81.0 cents) per share 64,767 104,922

REE-_T-_TF=-A=1+—H1t
FEREREMS RZE_ZTF
FEH SRR P 3 A R B B B K
FEZERINECHEZHANEZET
T(EHE-ZTZ-hE=ZA=+—H
IEFERARIPIE  715,0007T)
RIEERRBEELFELRA
ITEBREmMEITHRNTE AJE
HIRE. °

In respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2020, there was a difference of $nil (final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019: $715,000)
between the final dividend disclosed in the 2020 annual
financial statements and amount approved and paid
during the year which represented dividends
attributable to new shares issued upon the exercise of
share options, before the closing date of the Register of
Members.
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23FXxMEEMN =) 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) B (c) Share capital
—F-— —FT-F
2021 2020
& B $HE &R
Number of Number of
shares shares
T TFix
‘000 . ‘000
EERA Authorised:
BREE 1 TERAR Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERTRAZKRAE : Issued and fully paid:
RIEA—H At 1 April 129,533 129,533 128,650 128,650
RIZFEAEST2IZ57TH)  Shares issued under share
B& 5 (B &E () option scheme (note (i) - - 883 883
R=A=+—80 At 31 March 129,533 129,533 129,533 129,533

FiE Note:

() REBRESERITRG (i) Shares issued under share option scheme
BE_T-_—F=-A=+—HIFE I During the year ended 31 March 2021, no options were exercised.
EIT(EREARAE -

BE_ZT_ZF=-A=+—HILFE" During the year ended 31 March 2020, options were exercised to
EREFEARBAQARETARA K subscribe 883,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration
883,000 /% * {& 7 4 18,268,0007T * £ of $18,268,000, of which $883,000 was credited to share capital and
883,000 7TEE ARRAN + ER N A9 17,385,000 the balance of $17,385,000 was credited to the share premium
TCRIGE AR D &= BB - 1,340,000 7T E AR K account. $1,340,000 had been transferred from the capital reserve to
EE 1) FTE N E R A E AN EEE the share premium account in accordance with the accounting policy
AR R ERR © set out in note 1(qg)(ii).

(d)BEENMEFBE (d) Nature and purpose of reserves

() BRtPRE (i) Share premium
IRt s ERR A E AR A QR &R The application of the share premium account is
AN 150 R FENS7TIE B RiE— governed by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s

NN—FRBERYFTRE Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.
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23FExMEEMN =) 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d)RENEERAR (&) (d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(ii) B 5% (ii) Exchange reserve

PE 3 8 6 B 4 1 R B R 3 ZE A
MBMRAELENAEINEEZRE -
AN RRE M 1(u) PR LAY & 5T K
RERIEIE LR -

(i) A BER

BRE-NNANFH—BER AE
B ATER R B2 K BARR R EHE
DA o AR B FTEAM B AR M
BEEFEBAARRD ETRN
HEMNBBEZINATRBNHA
R o

ARBNBABRBTBRE-NN
—HE(REPERIFRE - RIEB R
ZE—NN\—F(REDER) » NAT]
HBARERA ALK

SR ETHERT - RARTEE
A B S R SR BB B Sk 1 1
HIE :

(a) WS BRI 0K 3 SBOR ST B
HImAE %

) REEMAZEREERM IR
HEERASHTRARKND
i B RREV AR o

(iv) EA

BN i B TR AR IR B RE 1(q)i) P L
AR D M ER A IR S FTEREK
BRETAABRENRITEER
BRETHANRAEE-

(v) LAY E (LR

T MBZENEEREERIBNFE
BERNMEEARENMERETE
EEENAAEEZS -

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of Mainland China operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 1(u).

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former
holding company of the Group became a subsidiary of
the Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company has
been credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

(iv)Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(q)(ii).

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the fair value change arising on the revaluation of
property held for own use upon transfer to investment

property.
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23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholder, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had outstanding interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.

The Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents
as at 31 March 2021 amounting to $622,143,000 (2020:
$511,047,000).
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(a) Financial risk management and fair value

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(i) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and
other financial assets. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk. Based on the historical experience of the collection
of the rental deposits from the landlords and the
financial position of the landlords, the directors assessed
that expected credit loss of these deposits as at 31
March 2021 was insignificant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not
have any significant concentration of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Except for
the financial guarantee given by the Company in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 26, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

RPGEEBAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

155



156

B 35 R AR MY R

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESHEEH - TRHBEZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

24 eMBAREERAAREEZ)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)
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(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

(1) Trade and other receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on customers of
catering service requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade and other receivables
are due within 30 to 75 days to certain customers to
which the Group provides catering services.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

ECL rates of the trade and other receivables are
assessed to be minimal, because of the customers’
good background and reputation and no past
default history. Thus, the loss allowance provision
for such balances was insignificant and no loss
allowance provision was recognised in respect of the
trade and other receivables for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020.

No credit evaluations are performed to retail
customers that are made in cash, Octopus or via
major credit cards. The Group’s trade receivables in
connection with sales settled through payment
platforms such as Octopus, Alipay or WeChat Pay
are with high credit rating and no past due history.
These assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible on the basis of
high-credit rating issuers during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020, and accordingly, no loss
allowance was recognised in respect of the trade
and other receivables.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)
(2) Other financial assets

Investments in debt securities are normally, issued
by corporate with sound credit standing. Given their
high credit standing, management does not expect
any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group measures loss allowances for debt
securities at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs and
assessed there was no significant loss allowance and
change in credit risk for the debt securities.

(i) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board of directors
when the borrowings exceed certain pre-determined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirement and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.
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2AEMAMEEER AOREE &) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
Q)ermEREERAANEERE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) REVEREME (&) (i) Liquidity risk (continued)
—E-—F
2021
FTRIARITER —FUE MEUE
FEe® RenEfsE —FR EmERN BRFA AFNUE
More than More than
Total one year two years
contractual but but More
Carrying undiscounted ~ Within  less than  less than than
amount cash flow oneyear two years five years five years
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
[EAeickapsn Rental deposits received 1,972 1,972 204 13 1,755 -
JEfTBRZMMESt  Creditors and accrued
R expenses 326,634 326,634 326,634 - - -
HEAR Lease liabilities 1,218,542 1,283,580 438,824 337,754 454,330 52,672

1,547,148 1,612,186 765,662 337,767 456,085 52,672

—T_TF
2020

FTRIARITER —FNUE MEUE
I RenERsE —FR EBmFR BRFA AFNRE

More than More than

Total one year two years
contractual but but More
Carrying undiscounted ~ Within  less than  less than than
amount cash flow oneyear two years five years five years
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2WHEEES Rental deposits received 2,315 2,315 1,142 13 1,160 =

FEfTBRZMMESt  Creditors and accrued

BH expenses 386,957 386,957 386,957 - - -
HEAaR Lease liabilities 1,461,363 1,544,351 486,062 395333 596,875 66,081

1,850,635 1,933,623 874,161 395346 598,035 66,081
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)

2 enEREERARKRER)

@e2rEMREERAABEE)
(i) E R R

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i) Currency risk

AEEEENEERRBREZERE
NAEBREXRBGMHEBNER
BANINMERE RBEMOE SR
BE ROFRLRREMREEFE
e Sl BUEERBRMEEETEERX
TRARYE - IR HH K
B AEEeELERRIZREE
REBINE - URERS FREREE
HERFFE AR T HOIRFE ©

TRFMANE BN R E LR IAERE
REEBNEEE NN E BT
BENERRAEEXREBEMELENE
BEBREE - BImmE - ARER
RENBEHRNERTXRBRERE
BIR - FRABETRREAAEE
B E BB IR IMNE B R
BMERMELHER

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
other financial assets and bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. The
Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

HNEE R B B
(AEHEFIR)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—T——fF —E-THF
2021 2020
ETT AR =TT AREE
United United
NEIES NEIES
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
Tz T Tz T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EMemEE Other financial assets 4,682 12,063 7,793 11,169
$RITERRIES T Bank deposits and cash and
REEEY cash equivalents 71,225 44,124 96,357 38,359
75,907 56,187 104,150 49,528
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20 eBAREERAARKRE#) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
QEermEREEN A EEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) E¥ERM (&) (iii) Currency risk (continued)

TR AR B R A 18 0 A R AR The following table indicates the change in the Group's

B K A FE 2N 52 [ P 2 S KRB profit after taxation and retained profits that would
MEZNREHARSEE (REAM arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
BEMEREEEZETE) mMER significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
Ml EEFE > ARBTHEE had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
TN REBTEHETL LB TN variables remained constant. In this respect, as Hong
[ERT g HIRTMEARES - Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, the

Group does not expect any significant movements in
the United States dollar/Hong Kong dollar exchange
rate.

T —fF —E_TF
2021 2020
B A5 18 8 A1) 2 PR 188 Al 2
(X EFH RBEH EXRLEFH RE
(&) i/ CEd) () &/ Cis)

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after

in foreign  taxation and in foreign  taxation and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

T T

$'000 $'000

AREE Renminbi 5.0% 2,809 5.0% 2,476
(5.0%) (2,809) (5.0)% (2,476)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)
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(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iv) Fair values

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
there were no transfers between financial instruments
in different levels. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2021 and 2020.
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20 eMEREERRAAEE®) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
(b) & FE T BErEERl (b) Categories of financial instruments

SREE Financial assets
HEMEemmEE Other financial assets
— R AT E N EEE S — Debt securities at amortised cost 16,745 18,962
IREER AT EN S REE Financial assets measured at amortised cost
- JEWERR « R MBI ER — Debtors, deposits and lease receivables 156,689 150,445
- ROGEREESESEEYD — Bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents 622,143 511,047
778,832 661,492
795,577 680,454
SEesE Financial liabilities
birg: £ )N N At amortised cost or cost
-BlEsES — Rental deposits received 1,972 2,315
- ENERFAEETE R — Creditors and accrued expenses 326,634 386,957
-HEBE — Lease liabilities 1,218,542 1,461,363
1,547,148 1,850,635
25 A iz 25 COMMITMENTS
R-ZE-Z—F=A=+—HBREMHX X Capital commitments for acquisition of other property, plant
ETBRRANIRBEGARIEB AL MY and equipment outstanding at 31 March 2021 not provided
X EBBTRENERAERNT for in the financial statements were as follows:

[SHES] Contracted for 3,752 7,568
EIREEARETD Authorised but not contracted for 4,189 11,967
7,941 19,535
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27EXRBIEES

FRAMBEHREREMBOPARBENR S M ME
BRI REEETT TIERBEB IR S

() EMM 7RI E  BAREEAEN
MEeRENARREFTHIE - B2
RERREIBEIAA A (2T
5(b)) °

bL)EAFERN ARA—XKKB QAR
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26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2021, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn
down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantees, being $89,153,000 (2020: $101,511,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be
reliably measured and there is no transaction price.

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

(a) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid to
the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

(b) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from New Champion International Limited (“New
Champion”). New Champion is a company beneficially
owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis
and his family member. In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung is a director of New Champion. Depreciation of the
right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities
incurred during the year amounted to $2,425,000 (2020:
$2,475,000) and $259,000 (2020: $320,000) respectively.
During the year, such tenancy agreement was renewed and
additions of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
$5,510,000 were recognised on the date of renewal.

At 31 March 2021, the Group recognised right-of-use

assets and lease liabilities of $12,939,000 (2020: $9,906,000)
and $13,187,000 (2020: $10,022,000) respectively.
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27EXRMBAERS (&) 27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

() EAFERN  AAA—KWEBRQRMA (c) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
EvERRRATEZD)BA—EY property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony”). Hibony is a
% o & 37 fh Pengto International Limited company beneficially owned by Pengto International
(el B#EREETEERES) BEa Limited (@ company beneficially owned by Mr Dennis Lo
WA - BRBLEAEYNE Hoi Yeung). In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a
E-FRNEANEREEETENUR director of Hibony. Depreciation of the right-of-use assets
HEBEBENEER R %2,629,000 and interest expense on lease liabilities incurred during the
(= F = T F:29180007 ) M year amounted to $2,629,000 (2020: $2,918,000) and
292,000C( =— & = & 4F : 365,000 $292,000 (2020: $365,000) respectively. During the year,
JL) e N ZAEHCER] Mg 2 E such tenancy agreement was renewed and additions of
AEEENHEBBENE BE ER right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of $3,893,000 were
/%3,893,0007T ° recognised on the date of renewal.
R-TE-_—F=ZfA=+—H ' K& At 31 March 2021, the Group recognised right-of-use
DRAERFERAEEEALEE assets and lease liabilities of $11,135,000 (2020:
B £11,1350000( = & — & & : $11,314,000) and $12,909,000 (2020: $11,541,000)
11,314,000 7T ) 112,909,000 7T ( =& respectively.

—Z4 :11,541,0007T) ©

(d) EHRAhEEEERSWERN (d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions
LSBT = SEK TR The related party transaction in respect of (c) above
EUASFIRTHEEREX S R EE constitute continuing connected transaction and connected
X5 AEEEIRE FTHBAIE 140 transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
BT EEeREN[BERETS The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
REERS | — L HE - Rules are provided in the section “Continuing connected

transactions and connected transaction” of the Report of
the Directors.

b 55 (b) TE R B 5 % S K L T AR B The related party transaction in respect of (b) above

SUASFATHBERSERS  BE constitute continuing connected transaction as defined in

TG fmAMER T A 1A E W Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however it is exempt

Tmia o from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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28 AFIBEMEEHE
(a) 2~ =) B H B Ak on 3R

28 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(a) Company-level statement of financial position

FREBEE Non-current assets

R E A B AR Interests in subsidiaries (a) 457,777 582,230

RETHIEEE Deferred tax assets - 22
457,777 582,252

RBEE Current assets

JREE LAt B RN EL At B MR R Trade and other receivables 120,477 98,346

BeMBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 837 690
121,314 99,036

REAE Current liability

FEA BR SRFN L Ath FE A 3Rk Trade and other payables 30,965 30,817

REEERE Net current assets 90,349 68,219

EERE NET ASSETS 548,126 650,471

BRI Capital and reserves 28(b)

A& Share capital 129,533 129,533

G Reserves 418,593 520,938

e TOTAL EQUITY 548,126 650,471

gEeN_E-_—F~A=-+NA
T A FF AT B o

ERB
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITEE
Executive Chairman

M5t (a) : PR A R R 1 1R A AN B AR AV 3F
EWRD - EEZWEARMNFBEHR
F169RFE170E - AEBE W EAE W
MiE A mHE R & AR -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 June 2021.

'
Lo Fai Shing Francis
TTIAE ]

Chief Executive Officer

Note (a): The interests in subsidiaries represent the unlisted shares stated

at cost. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
169 and 170. The Group does not have any subsidiary which has
a material non-controlling interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIERBEHR - TRIGABESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28 RFIBEMBREE (&) 28 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) AE)EHEZEE)X (b) Company-level statement of changes in equity
TR E AR RE RIS A K E D E Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
REPEPRNEBFE components of equity between the beginning and the end

of the reporting period are set out below:

BA ROEE MARR ARRE REEH
NEIE Share  Contributed Capital  Retained

capital  premium surplus reserve profits
{3 T T T T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R=ZE-1F At 1 April 2019
mA—A 128,650 36,131 28,182 6,470 365,559 564,992
FEEDHENAE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (104,922) (104,922)
REEZEERMALE  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - (29,793) (29,793)
AER & Profit for the year = - - - 200,393 200,393
RIEREICHEST 213877 Shares issued under share
L) option scheme 23()()) 883 17,385 = = - 18,268
BITER Issue expenses _ 4) _ _ _ (24)
AR EE AR Equity-settled share-based
BEBNZ S transactions 23(0)(i) - 1,340 - 217 - 1,557
R-E-%F At 31 March 2020
=B=+—H 129,533 54,832 28,182 6,687 431,237 650,471
R-E=2F At 1 April 2020
mA—H 129,533 54,832 28,182 6,687 431,237 650,471
FEEBHERMRE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (64,767) (64,767)
AFEEBEIRMWAE  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - (38,860) (38,860)
RE R Profit for the year - - - - 276 276
BB PR e S % A 8 Lapse and cancellation of
share options - - - (1,297) - (1,297)
MRS E AR Equity-settled share-based
BEBORS transactions - - - 2,303 - 2,303
R-BZ—F At 31 March 2021

=A=+-—-H 129,533 54,832 28,182 7,693 327,886 548,126
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BIESEEHR - TRHEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29 i FEIR 29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
BEEAEMBEHRREM HIENEIE Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
G AT RREAE AN EASEIE - financial statements, the following significant events took

place subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

E-ZEZE-_—FHALMNRERE  KEED The acquisition of machineries and inventories from two third

nﬂzuiﬁﬁﬂﬁ*”_ﬁﬁtjgﬁmﬁikﬁiﬁﬁ party suppliers in relation to the production of bakery items

TSR RS 17 & was completed after the Group settled the consideration in
April 2021.

BEENREHERBEZDRAHKRS After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a

BRAFBHIIRHE23(0) ° final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 23(b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIERBEHR - TRIGABESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

0BB/AHEERKREEE_=S_—F= 30POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
B=+—HILEEENHET - H STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT

HRMRERTERHRE NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2021
HEABBEHRERTIZER  EASTMAE Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
CEMZBEEE S -_—F=A=1+— HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
BIEFERARER  TNRBERIBHREK standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
FREEMEST R —IEIER (BB KRS effective for the year ended 31 March 2021 and which have
ERINFEN7HE—TREAA] - BB (LB not been adopted in these financial statements. These
BTy A EEARANIER - developments include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

AT Bk 2 18
FsA R & 5 BRI A 2K

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

CEBIMBIRELER])F 3RS ET — [ HBL4ELLa 5/ 4t | T _F—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
(EBGAEADFE6FINER] — (W3 SRR E - ZIRERAMREN B T -F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
(CEBGEADEITRINES] — [FESH — BHKE] —E-—F—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
(EEVBIRELR)FEBGE (2018 2020 F E [FH) T F—A—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
INEE F AR E e E QI B L S s R A The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
HEMSEZ - DBERAIE  NEBHEEE the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
WiE BT AR pe 2 BT A MR R R E period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
HEATE - adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on

the consolidated financial statements.
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TEMRBE LA

Principal Subsidiaries

CIET

Name of company

BEERARRA

Benley Development Limited

ARE R ERERAF

Fairwood (Shenzhen)
Development Limited

Fairwood B.V.I. Limited*

Fairwood B.V.I. Limited*

Fairwood Consolidated
Investments Limited*

Fairwood Consolidated
Investments Limited*

ARERE (EB) ARAF

Fairwood Fast Food
(Management) Limited

AREREERAF

Fairwood Fast Food Limited

Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited*

Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited*

FEERERAA

Great Choice Development Limited

VEEREBRAA
Joybo Development Limited

AZERERAF
Leon Development Limited

i

R RIS &I
Place of incorporation/
establishment

and operation

BE
Hong Kong

&g
Hong Kong

HBABRES/
0

The British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

HBABRES/
0

The British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong

ABABRES/
0

The British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

B#1T/iM
BRI
Particulars of
issued/registered
capital

2R 15
2 shares

10,000 R& % 15
10,000 shares

579,437 R G A%
mEE0.01 E T
579,437 shares of
US$0.01 each

1IREE
([E:3)
1 share

of US$1

2R
2 shares

100 A% & AR &
579,437 ik
EREEETRN
100 ordinary shares and
579,437 non-voting
deferred shares

1IREE
([E:3)
1 share

of US$1

2R
2 shares

2R 15
2 shares

2[R 5
2 shares

/N

EliEs)ha
BO

Percentage of
shares held
by the Company

=8
Direct

100%

100%

it

Indirect

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

ES§

Property investment
REZK
Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding

BEER
Investment holding
BAREER
Restaurant licences
holding
ERRBEEE

Operation of a chain of
fast food restaurants

RAEAR

Trademark holding

ESE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FTEMBEQA
Principal Subsidiaries

e,/ BE#1T/iM AR EIFTH R
UNSIEEE R R BAFE Bk
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
establishment issued/registered SIETEE
Name of company and operation capital by the Company Principal activity
B i
Direct Indirect

KEBERARAF BB 284D - 100% NERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ERERBERAF BB 2[R BAD - 100% NERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
FRERER AT ER 2Bt - 100% NERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RYKREREARAR* FEIAH 18,100,000 % 7T - 100% BEERRER
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Mainland China US$18,100,000 Operation of a chain of

Limited* fast food restaurants
BAEREBRAF &R 2 ieesn - 100% NERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ABEREBRAF BB 2R - 100% NERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERBERAA N 2R = 100% MERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REBRBERAF ) 2Rt - 100% NERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
BIEERERAR ) 21RAx - 100% NERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
FERERERAR ) 2Rt - 100% NERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

* L ERFWIFRETHEAMEREZ *  Companies not audited by KPMG

@ RZZEZ—F=RA=+—8H FHEERA

ST EETEZOK B A RFBRE D
ARG S BENARE A EEFE
294% (ZZE_TF : 4%) R5% (ZE_F

F:5%)°

(b) BIBRREER D FETEERE -

(a) At 31 March 2021, the financial statements of the subsidiaries

not audited by KPMG reflect total revenue and total net assets
constituting approximately 4% (2020: 4%) and 5% (2020: 5%)
respectively of the related consolidated totals.

(b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.



FEBTFHBEHBE

Five-Year Group Financial Summary

(AEIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

i Results:
WA Revenue 2,646,469 3,030,198 2,970,524 2,840,571 2,580,904
A g A Profit from operations 175,223 110,075 215,204 255,033 249,539
BhA AR AN Finance costs (36,824) (37,995) (32) (68) (94)
BB Al S Profit before taxation 138,399 72,080 215,172 254,965 249,445
FR18%: Income tax 15,218 (11,213) (35,225) (38,888) (44,164)
PAUNGIL: S Profit attributable to equity

vl shareholders of the Company 153,617 60,867 179,947 216,077 205,281
BEMEE: Assets and liabilities:
KREME By - Investment properties, other

HBMEREREE property, plant and equipment

+it and leasehold land 454,696 513,111 518,633 546,060 501,299
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,110,609 1,433,611 = = =
PR & R Lease receivables 2,768 = - - _
GEES Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
Effeke Rental deposits paid 72,737 76,732 68,517 71,602 69,089
HEMEREE Other financial assets - 15,821 19,825 7,785 7,885
R IEEE Deferred tax assets 3,935 22 44 107 145
MEEE Current assets 802,293 668,620 667,788 665,157 624,965
EEAE Total assets 2,448,039 2,708,918 1,275,808 1,291,712 1,204,384
REERE Current liabilities (811,902)  (915,652)  (419,527)  (454,875)  (417,246)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (858,301) (1,072,460) (78,603) (73,731) (71,846)
EEFE Net assets 777,836 720,806 777,678 763,106 715,292

Mz AR E T -NFEA - BRRACEBR KR
SEADE 165 —[HE ] AEBESHAEA

Note: As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1 April
2019, the Group has changed its accounting policies in respect of the lessee
accounting model. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the
standard, the changes in accounting policies were adopted by way of opening
balance adjustments to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at
1 April 2019. After initial recognition of these assets and liabilities, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Prior to 1 April 2019, figures were stated in accordance with the policies
applicable in those years.

E O BERIBRENEERABNREABNTE

REE-_T-NFMNA—ANEREEEME
BRE HREEERBBETVHEERR &
KEVEREBARTRIAEERERENERITE
SHNEER  WHERAREEFRITE - Mk
RRU AT BOREE E RN ABRAERICEE
ENHLBR - —T-NFNA—HA - BFE
IRE FEANBERIIE
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AEEENRENR
Investment Properties Held by the Group

WZZ-_—F=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2021

It B IS

Location Existing use

Y

YT

72 [

B 5

G S e,

%1035 = 104057 555 727 8
Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2 Shops
Lowu Commercial Plaza

Guangchang South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC

HEH
Term of lease

Gk

Medium-term
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